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Annual Report

To the Shareholders:

In compliance with legal provisions in force and those of the bylaws, we have pleasure in submitting for your
consideration this Annual Report and the Balance Sheet of Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. (the Company) as
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Statements of Operations, Changes in Shareholders® Equity and Cash Flows,
with their corresponding notes and schedules, for the fifth financial year commenced January 1, 2001 and ended
December 31, 2001.

Furthermore, we submit to your consideration the Consolidated Balance Sheet of Compaiiia de Alimentos Fargo
S.A. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2000, as well as the Statements of Consolidated Operations
and Consolidated Cash Flows for the financial years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, with their notes and
consolidated schedules and the Consolidated Summary of Activities which is submitted as supplementary
information. )

Compafifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. is the principal industrial bakery in Argentina, established on October 3,
1997 as the result of a merger between Fargo S.A. - Pemsa S.A. - DACSA - Distribuidora Argentina de
Comestibles S.A.ILC.F.A. - Compaiifa FEGOPRE de Valores Mobiliarios y Garantias S.A. and Gouguerheim
S.A.

The Company produces and/or manufactures products such as sliced bread, buns, frozen products and others.

The Company sells its products throughout almost all Argentina, as well as in Uruguay through Enicor S.A,, a
subsidiary company.

2001 was a difficult year for the Argentine economy, which materially affected the level of sales by 4.0% in
comparison to the previous year.

In spite of the drop in sales which has been felt on a country-wide level, the ultra-refrigerated product line
increased by 14.7%. In Argentina, this type of product can be found mainly in supermarkets and it is expected
that the market will continue to expand through other customer channels, which are showing a greater interest in
changing their activities and offering this type of product, which would allow them to lower their operating costs
and work in smaller spaces, with low operating wastage, making use of facilities requiring a low level of
investment. This is a quality product line that offers fresh and tasty products at all times.

Operating expenses (cost of products sold and administration and marketing expenses) recorded an increase of
94 %.

The main factors that influenced the increase in operating expenses were:

- Higher costs for advertising and publicity, that amounted to $ 13.8 million in 2001,
$ 3.2 million more than in the previous year. This increase is basically the result of the higher percentages of
discounts to supermarkets under the new agreements signed with them as well as the broadcasting of the
“Fargo” brand through the launching of a new commercial in mass media in order to return to addressing the
customers, reaffirming the virtues of its products and the strength of the brand, which allows the Company to
maintain its leadership on the market and generate greater sales.

- Expenses for taxes, rates and contributions increased by $ 0.5 million in comparison to fiscal 2000. This
increase was mainly caused by a new tax on bank current account debits and credits that came into effect in
April 2001.




- The charge for updating the allowance for bad debts recorded an increase of $ 1.4 million as a result of the
prevailing economic situation.

The allowance for impairment of investment made in Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de
Argentina SA is disclosed in the line “Extraordinary Results” as well as the allowance for the balances held there.

Additionally, on February 26, 2001, the National Committee for the Defense of Competition handed down a
favorable resolution concerning the purchase of Fresh Food S.A., which is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of bakery products and related products, with which the Company signed a share sale/purchase agreement for
100% of that company’s share package.

This year an agreement was signed between Fresh Food S.A. and the Company, under which the latter will
produce and sell its subsidiary’s products under the “Fresh Food” brand. In consideration, the Company will
pay a royalty on the net sales of the products sold under that brand.

Continuing with the policy of improving the IT systems that began in previous years, the optimization of the
resources offered by the R/3 system of 'SAP is being analyzed in order to extract information for improved
decision making and analysis of the business in every day events throughout the Company. We have also
implemented:

- placement on internet of the corporate site
- impleméntation of Notes Workflow in order to automate the flow of information

Important investments were made in the ultra-refrigerated products plant, which are the result of the favorable
forecasts our Company has regarding the behavior of the market in the demand for this type of product that has
great potential for growth.

New projects are being permanently evaluated, both in the production and in the marketing areas. Our premise is
that the mass consumption products which are manufactured with technology and efficiency have a greater
demand and therefore a larger share of the local and international markets.

Special mention should be made of the fact that on May 3, 2001 the ISO (International Standard Organization)
Licensor in Argentina has granted the Company its 9001-2000 version quality certificate to the ultra-refrigerated
products plant in El Talar (Municipality of Tigre). This Licensor sets standards that can be applied to any
production process or service, regardless of the product manufactured.

The ISO 9001-2000 standard is the version that specifies the different items that the Quality Management System
must fulfill, based on complying with customer requirements and the continual search for improvement. The
certificate is the act that formalizes and attests that the Quality Management System implemented is in
accordance with the requirements of the norm.

Considering the prospects disclosed in the Consolidated Summary of Activities, the Company hopes that the
internal situation of the country will be consolidated so as to be able to puil out from the recessive scenario
which it 1s in.

We would again like to thank the Company personnel for their efforts and assistance throughout the year.
We are at your disposal for any clarification you may require.

Buenos Aires, March 8, 2002
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS




Name of the Company: Compaiiia de Alimentos
' F argo S.A. (“The Company”)

Corporate Domicile: Av. del Libertador 602 - Piso 4°
Capital Federal
Principal Activity: Manufacturing and/or processing of foodstuff

products, particularly bakery products.

Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance
with Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

Registration date

Of the By-laws: October 3, 1997

Of latest amendments: January 20, 1999

Registration number with the Corporation

Control Authority: 11,377

Duration of the Company: October 2, 2096

Name of the Majority Shareholder (Note 17): Fargo Holding (Gibraltar)

Corporate Domicile: 10/8 International Commercial Centre
Casemates Square - Gibraltar

Principal Activity: Investments

Equity held by the Controlling Company

(Note 17): 99.999997 %

Percentage of votes held by the Controlling

Company (Note 17): 99.999997%

COMMON STOCK STATUS (Note 17)

Shares

Subscribed issued and paid up
Number of shares Type of stock No. of votes per share (Pesos)

Ordinary, registered, non-endorsable with a
12,401,199 face value of Ps. 10 each 1 124,011,990




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

(Notes 2 and 4)

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and banks (Note 5 and Schedule G)
Investments (Schedule D) ..o et
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 6 and 19 and Schedules Eand G)........coovvevinne
Other receivables (Notes 7, 18 and 19 and Schedule G) ......ccovvvvveerervccrerviccncnnens
Inventories, net (Note 8 and Schedule E)...ovvvvviviieeeiiiiic e
Other assets (Note 9)
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 6 and 19 and Schedule E) .....ccoovvvvviencevcnnnninenne
Other receivables (Notes 7 and 19 and Schedoles EY G) .coovcvivvieiciiinincn.
Investments (Schedules € and D) ....vviveveeivineninriccererererceen st
Property, plant and equipment, net (Schedules A and G)

Intangible assets, net (Schedule B) ...
Other @sSetS (INOTE 9)..evvuriie e e st
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS ...
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (Notes 10 and 19 and Schedule G)
Short-term debt (Notes 11 and 19 and Schedule G)......cocoverveveevvcciciciinincnnin
Salaries and social security payable (Notes 12 and 19).......ccccvvvveieicniciennn
Taxes payable (Notes 13 and 19) ...t
Other liabilities (Notes 14 and 19 and Schedule G) ....oocvvevevnnrcricneciniicnceicnnns
Total Current Liabilities...............ccocorvvrvcniiininisnnioriminisninncns
Non-Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (Notes 10 and 19 and Schedule G)...c..ovvvmvieeivicnininniniiniinn
Long-term debt (Notes 11 and 19 and Schedule G) .....ocoovrviieencicniiinicc
Taxes payable (Notes 13 and 19) ...
Other liabilities (Notes 14 and 19 and Schedule G).....coceevvmcviinninenciicninns
Provisions (Note 19 and Schedule E)......coovervirnvinmniieimiieiieine s
Total Non-Current Liabilities ...
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..ottt
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ......cocoociiienmiininiinrcssitenseni s sssssi s saens
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

3,304,797 2,513,682
- 2,708,239
16,507,839 25,911,199
2,691,064 4,679,801
2,915,368 3,550,944
1,229,444 1,117.454
26,648,512 40,481.319
1,147,602 816,063
307,247 6,067,738
153,534 10,195,428
63,488,207 60,701,240
129,553,433 149,130,412
2,089,318 2.689.216
196.739,341 229,600,097
223,387.853 270,081,416

24,985,872 - 23,100,741
19,057,233 13,291,924
5.855.198 2,256,569
2,900,290 3,317,215
6,836,924 1,022,658
59.635.517 42,989,107
122,082 449,112
138,000,000 146,500,000
6,164 18.491
122,455 248,700
2,274,934 2,125,251
140,525,635 149,341,554
200,161,152 192,330,661
23,226,701 77,750,755
223,387,853 270,081.416

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

See separate Auditor' s report dated
March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.

by (Partner)
CPCECABATIFIRAPU
Dr. Ruben O. Mosi
Public Accountant (U.B.A.)
C.P.CECAB.A To. 68 - Fo. 134

Marcelo Aubone
Vice - President




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with

Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)
(Notes 2 and 4)

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

(Pesos) (Pesos)

Net sales (Note 15) 133,381,934 139,002,675

Cost Of 5ales (SChedULE F)....cv ittt et s nen e ere s (70,040,076) (70,543,292)

GIOSS PIOFiL.....cooiviiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 63,341,858 68,459,383

Selling expenses (SChedule H) ..ot nin e one e (47,930,444) (40,364,880)

General and Administrative expenses (Schedule H) ................... ettt e err b ee e e baebaeas (32,326,998) (26,453,514)

Operating (10ss) / Profit ..........cc.coocveieniniricnininec e (16,915,584) 1,640,989

Other expenses and income, Nt (NOLE 16).......ovvrvrimriiiiciiecen i (3,510,098) (1,367,587)
Financial results, net (Note 17):

GENErated DY BSSEIS ...ucureererrrimisietins st etss s esrcne st esesenassc s s e s ssseansasssesas (343,900) 406,097

Generated by HabIHUES .....ooevrierieiniceiicnrneseneee et (22,081,875) (24,459,750)

Net loss before Minimum Notional Income tax (42,851,457) (23,780,251)

Minimum Notional Income tax (Schedule E)......ccoooviiiiiiiiiiieie e (4,657,942) -

OPAINATY 1085 ..o b s (47,509,399) (23,780,251)

Extraordinary results (Note 21c. and Schedules Band E) .....cooooiiiiia (10,659,930) -

Net 1088 for the YEar ... v (58,169,329) (23,780,251)

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

See separate Auditor' s report dated

March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.
by (Partner)
CPCECABATIFIRAPU. '
Dr. Ruben O. Mosi Marcelo Aubone
Public Accountant (U.B.A)) Vice - President

C.P.C.EE.C.A.B.A. To. 68 - Fo. 134




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

~ For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with

Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)
(Notes 2 and 4)

CHANGES IN FUNDS
Funds at the beginning of the year

(Decrease)/Increase in funds

Funds at the end of the year....

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
5,221,921 3.362.933
------ (1.917.124) 1,858,988
3,304,797 5221921

CAUSES OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

Net loss for the year ..........

Plus: Items not entailing the use of funds

(58,169,329)

(23,780,251)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment.... 9,338,138 9,033,353
Net book value of property, plant and equipment decreases 25,362 -
Net book value of property, plant and equipment sold 84,755 198,640
Amortization of intangible assets 31,857,189 16,391,533
Net book value of 0ther asSe1s SOId ..ottt e e s b st e 10,972 91,772
Net book value of other assets decreases 193,450 -
Depreciation Of OET @SSELS «..c....coireucrneriiirieimmrisir et re e e asseas et st bens 271,939 140,815
Accrued salaries and social security pending payment 2,345,272 1,155,174
Indemnities to personnel pending payment 1,620,564 261,071
Increase in Provision for 1aWSUILS .o ceeiienee i 464,084 456,637
Increase in allowance for doubtfu) accounts 5,000,568 672,624
Interest receivable - (103,356)
Holding 1085 7 (2aiN) 0N INVENIOTIES «...oevereeirrrrrsisotcrsersensosavassansesescosssssstsssesssrassssserssssssssssons 304,127 (68.119)
Accrued interests PENAing PAYMENL. .......ccewrieieiamtrmsnsersssanssrins et rass s eesstssas s seassseassses s onesena eres 7.066,019 7,291,924
Minimum Notional Income tax 4,657,942 -
Accrued 12X 0N COTPOTALE INUEDIEANESS w.v.crvevumrerersomeiisnssremseasssseesssmesnsssmssasassonsssess s 319,451 1,099,221
Gain from the sale of property, plant and equipment in installments (79.754) ‘ -
Other........... 96,009 27
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts payable..u i 812,533 2,717,331
Accounts receivable 4,333,325 (6,979.443)
Other receivables ...... 3,407,205 (2.380,638)
Inventories 351,273 374,523
OHET ASSELS 1evversviremaeicrrarsresteressmsas st sas ks s s s aas st ra s resa st s bt bbbt maa ettt (127,911) (1,143,210
Salaries and social security payable (878,161) (3,060,050}
Taxes payable (898,789) (1,322,402)
PrOVISION fOT JAWSLILS ..oveiresuissirescnnessnrcsssssssssmes semssrm e st s s ocasesseasssmsessesesones (350,298 (276,230
Other LHabDIIEs .o.ooveiveurieeecrerereress s reecssseisensssecsnnne (272.458) 155,311
Total of funds provided by the 0Perations...........coeviieiei s e 11,783,477 926,257
Funds (used in) provided by investments activities
Acquisition of property, plant and eQUIPIIENt..ervv..orecrsrmsrrsesssrsianssesssesinss (4,568,616) (4,832.297)
EXpenses on intangible @SSE18 ... .....ovimumiiieciionssriiasiiss e s s s (2,161,233) (4,136,471)
Acquisition of SUBSIJIATIES ......ecorvme et (824,103) (1,093,888)
Advances for the purchase of shares................... - (3.290,153)
Total of funds used in investments activities...... (7,553,952) (13,352,809

See separate Auditor’ s report dated

March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.
by (Partner)

CPCECABATIFIRAPU

Dr. Ruben O. Mosi
Public Accountant (U.B.A.)
C.P.CEC.AB.A. To.68-Fo. 134

Marcelo Aubone
Vice - President




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

(Notes 2 and 4)
(Continued)
December 31, 2001 Decemnber 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

Funds (used in) provided by financial activities
Increase in loans - 33,500.000
Loans to companies under Article 33 Law 19,550 - (324,828)
Irrevocable contributions. 3,645,275
Decrease in loans ' (9.791.924) (18,889.632)
Total of funds (used in) provided by fi ial activities. (6,146,649) 14,285.540
(Decrease)/Increase in funds... (1.917.124) 1,858.988

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

(Pesos) {Pesos)
Supplemental cash flow information
Non-cash financial activities
- Sale Of Other asSets i IMSTAIUTIENLS ..c.ovvvurrurescererersnressememensee et s s seasseesoess st e aen s st e bems b s s e rna b b e s s sb s b - 52,565
- Sale of property, plant and equipment in installments 92,810 12227
- Debt for the acquisizion of subsidiaries 5,603,854 -
- Advances granted ar 12.31.00 and at 12.31.99 applied to the purchase of subsidiaries 10.039.254 1,865.857
37922

- Decrease in accounts receivable through additions of property. plant and equipment........cocovviiiviiiiiiiinieni

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

See separate Auditor' s report dated

March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.
by (Partner)
CPCECABATIFPIRAPU.
Dr. Ruben O. Mosi Marcelo Aubone
Public Accountant (U.B.A.) Vice - President

C.P.CECAB.A To. 68 - Fo. 134




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial Position

Argentina is immersed in a difficult economic climate. The prevailing indicators during 2001 were a
significant public debt burden, high interest rates, decrease in savirigs amounts, country risk levels far above -
normal average and a three-year economic recession. This situation has led to a significant decrease in products
and services consumption and an increase in the unemployment level. These circumstances have affected the
Government’s ability to comply with existing commitments and access to bank financing.

As from December 3, 2001 restrictions on cash availability and circulation and the transfer of foreign
currency abroad have been imposed. On December 21, 2001 foreign exchange trading was suspended.
Subsequently, the Government declared default on external debt payments.

On January 6, 2002, after a political crisis that resulted in the resignation of two presidents, the
Government enacted Law N° 25561 (Ley de emergencia piblica y reforma del régimen cambiario) that
involved significant changes to the prevailing economic policy and the amendment of the currency
convertibility Law in force since March 1991. On February 3, 2002 the Government announced new economic
measures that were implemented through Decree 214 (Restructuring of the financial system) dated February 3,
2002 , Decree 260 (Exchange Regime) dated February 8, 2002, and Decree 410 (Restructuring of the financial
system) dated March 1, 2002, that modified some of the measures included on Law N°® 25561. These decrees
are being complemented with other regulations, some of which may have been pending at the date at issuance
of these financial statements.

Some of the measures taken by the Government, in force at the date of issuance of these financial
statements, and related effects on the Company’s financial position are described below.

Exchange system

On January 6, 2002 a dual currency system has been instituted. Certain transactions that qualify under
the Government regulations (basically imports and exports) would be at an official exchange (fixed) rate of §
1.4 per US$ 1. All other transactions would be at the free floating market exchange rate. On January 11, 2002,
Banco Nacidn Argentina published its first free market rate at $ 1.6 per US$ 1 (ask) and $ 1.4 per US$ 1 (bid).

On February 8, 2002 the Government issued Decree 260 under which as from February 11, 2002 a
single free floating currency system was instituted. Banco Central de la Repiiblica Argentina is entitled to
regulate currency system operations and should approve certain transfers of foreign currency abroad.

Bank deposits

Decree 214 state that, as from February 3, 2002 bank deposits denominated in U.S. dollars or other
foreign currencies will be converted to pesos at the exchange rate of $ 1.4 per US$ 1 or its equivalent in such
other currency. Furthermore, there are restrictions on the availability of checking accounts and savings
accounts balances denominated in dollars and time deposits balances denominated in pesos or dollars, which
will be paid back in installments whose amounts and due dates depend on balances recorded. As from February
3, 2002 an adjusting index (CER) and an interest rate will be applied to these rescheduled deposits. In addition,
the owners of these deposits can elect to receive up to US$ 30,000 in Government bonds denominated in U.S.
dollars.




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 1: Argentine Economic sitnation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial Position
(Continued):

Receivables and debts not related to the financial system

Accounts receivable and payable denominated in dollars or other foreign currency and agreements
between private entities that state prices or fees in dollars or other foreign currency were converted to pesos at
an exchange rate of $ 1 per US$ 1 or its equivalent in such other foreign currency. An adjusting index (CERY} is
to be applied to these balances as from February 3, 2002. If goods or services prices are higher or lower than
amounts paid at corresponding due dates the parties can request a price readjustment. If the parties involved do
not reach an agreement, lawsuits or other legal action may be initiated.

Income tax

Exchange losses recorded due to devaluation are deductible for income tax purposes over a five-year
period.

Valuation of foreign currency receivables and liabilities

In accordance with Resolution 1/02 of the Professional Council in Economic Sciences of the
Autonomous City of Buenos Aires and (Resolution No. 392 of the National Securities Commission)
(Resolution 2/02 of the Superintendence of Corporations), as of December 31, 2001 receivables and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies were valued at the exchange rate of $ [ per US$ 1 or its equivalent in any
other foreign currency.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has recorded receivables and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies as follows:

a) Checking accounts with Argentine Banks:

Currency Amount in foreign
currency
Assets
Cash and Banks Uuss 7,258
Total 7,258

b) Receivables and liabilities with local customers and suppliers:

Currency Amount in foreign
currency

Current Assets
Other receivables USs 63,972
Non Current Assets
Other receivables USS 8,670
Advances to suppliers USs 583
Total 73,225
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable USs$ 1,253,700
Other liabilities USs 2,259,836
Total 3,513,536




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 1: Argentine Ecenomic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial Position
(Continued):

c) Deposits and debts with foreign banks. Receivables and liabilities with foreign customers and suppliers:

Currency Amount in foreign
currency

Current Assets
Cash and Banks USs$ 34,692
Trade Accounts Receivable US$ 167,726
Other Receivables USS$ 8,614
Non current Assets
Advances to suppliers USs 99,000
Total 310,032
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable USs 298,144
Loans uUss . 19,057,233
Non current liabilities
Loans Uss 138,000,000
Total 157,355,377

The measures adopted by the Government, detailed in preceding paragraphs, applying exchange rates
prevailing at February 28, 2002 of $ 2.05/ 2.15 per US$ 1 - ask/bid rates — will have an estimated impact on
the Company’s financial position as of December 31, 2001, of § 180,629,189 (exchange loss). The effects of
devaluation, together with other measures adopted, will be recorded in subsequent period’s financial statements.

The Company is taking a variety of actions as a result of the present recession and to attempt to limit
the negative impact on ongoing operations.

The impact generated by measures adopted to date by the Government on the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2001 was calculated on the basis of management present assessments. Actual
results could differ from current management assessments and such differences could be material. Therefore, the
Company’s financial statements may not include all adjustments that might ultimately result from these adverse
conditions. Future economic developments and related effects on the Company’s financial position cannot
presently be determined. Therefore, any decision taken on the basis of these financial statements must consider
the effects of these measures and their future development and the Company’s financial statements should be
read under the light of circumstances herein described.

The Company is highly leveraged. As of December 31, 2001, the Company's total indebtedness was $
157,057,233, including U.S. dollar denominated debt payable to entities abroad of US$ 30,432,233, and foreign
debt to bonds holders of US$ 126,625,000 (including capital and interest at the end of the year). The Company 's
debt service obligations in 2002 amount to US$ 19,057,233.

The Company incurred a net loss of $ 58,169,329 in the year ended 2001. In addition, the Company
generated consolidated working capital deficit of $ 32,987,005 during the year ended 2001, and has an
accurnulated deficit of $ 118,743,367 as of December 31, 2001. All of these matters raise substantial doubt about
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. As a result, the Company has begun a process to address
the Company's highly leveraged capital structure. The Company expects to develop alternatives in connection
with a restructuring of its short and long-term debt. While the Company believes that there are certain alternatives
available, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in implementing any such alternatives or
that any such alternatives, if implemented, will enable the Company to meet its obligations.

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern. Therefore, these financial statements do not included any adjustments relating to the recoverability
and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial Position
(Continued);

necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern, requiring it to realize its assets and
settle its liabilities, including contingent liabilities, in conditions other than those of the normal course of its
business.

The Company’s continuation as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its obligations on a timely basis, to obtain additional financing as may be required and/or the
restructuring of its liabilities, as well as being dependent on a recovery in demand in the short term in order to
reverse the loss situation mentioned above, and also on the Company’s ability to absorb amortization of
goodwill, depreciation of fixed assets, as well as to generate the necessary cash flows to continue the normal
course of business.

Note 2: Principles of Consolidation

As required by General Resolution No. 368/01 of the CNV, which establishes that consolidated financial
statements must be submitted following the procedure outlined in Technical Resolution No. 4 of the Argentine
Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences, the Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001 and 2000 of
the Company, and the related Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000 have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis with the financial statements of the Company's
subsidiaries in which it controls a majority of the voting shares (Note 3).

For consolidation purposes the financial statements of Enicor S.A. (a company organized under the laws
of Repiiblica Oriental del Uruguay ("R.O.U." or "Uruguay")) have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards prevailing in Argentina. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000, Enicor S.A.
changed the financial statement translation method used, going from the adjust/convert method to the
convert/adjust method as called for by Technical Resolution No. 13 of the FA.C.P.CE..

As a result of the decline in inflation in the Uruguayan economy in the last few years, this country has
ceased to be considered hyperinflationary, for which reason Enicor S.A. has decided to discontinue the
restatement of its financial statements as from January 1, 2000.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2000 are presented for purposes of
comparison, as required under professional accounting standards. In order to present that information in a

manner consistent with the financial information for the current year, the consolidated financial statements
originally issued as of the earlier date have been subjected to some reclassifications.

Note 3: Corporate Control

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company shows the following corporate control:

Percentage of voting shares owned Closing date of the
: financial statements
12.31.01 12.31.00 used
Enicor S.A. (R.O.U.) 100% 100% 12.31.01
Panificacién Argentina S.A.L.C. 99.9999% 99.9999% 12.31.01
Capital Foods S.A. (1) 99.9917% 99.9917% 12.31.01
Fresh Food S.A. (2) 99.9997% - 12.31.01
Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de
Argentina S.A. (3) 99.9985% - 12.31.01

(1) On February 25, 2000, the CNDC approved the acquisition by the Company of 100% of Capital Foods S.A.'s capital stock (Note 25 to the
unconsolidated financial statements).
(2) On February 26, 2001 the CNDC approved the acquisition by the Company of 100% of Fresh Food S.A.'s capital stock (Note 28 to the
unconsolidated financial statements).
(3) See Note 21.c.

The assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results for the years ended at such
dates, have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis with the financial statements of Compafifa de Alimentos
Fargo S.A..




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 4: Accounting Principles

The financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries mentioned in Note 3 have been prepared based
on accounting principles consistent with those applied for preparing the financial statements of Compafiia de
Alimentos Fargo S.A..

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have been applied consistently with those”
of the previous year:

a. Local currency assets and liabilities

The local currency assets and liabilities have been stated at their face value, including if applicable,
accrued interest at the end of the year.

b. Foreign currency assets and liabilities

Foreign currency assets and liabilities were translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date, including if applicable, accrued interest at the end of the year.

¢. Investments
Current:
- Time deposits are valued at cost, plus accrued interest at the end of the year.
- Mutual funds disclosed at their quotation value at the end of the year.
Non-current:
- Investments in other companies. Advances on account of future share purchases:
The advances recorded under this caption are stated at their face value at the end of the year.
Properties:
The real estate properties are stated at their fair market value as of October 31, 1997, based on an
appraisal performed by independent professionals, less accumulated depreciation, calculated under

the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 50 years.

d. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at estimated realizable values net of the allowance for doubtful accounts
which is considered by management to be sufficient to meet any future losses related to uncollectible amounts.

e. Inventories

Inventories are stated at replacement cost and/or production cost at the end of the year, which does not
exceed their recoverable values,
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 4: Accounting Principles (Continued)
f. Property, plant and equipment
Properties:

The real estate properties are stated at their fair market value as of October 31, 1997, based
on an appraisal performed by independent professionals. The building improvements’
occurred after such date, have been valued at their historical cost.

Other:

The additions occurred up to August 31, 1995 are recorded at cost, adjusted for the
cumulative inflation from the date of acquisition until August 31, 1995. Additions after
August 31, 1995, are stated at their historical cost.

In the case of certain fixed assets other than building where appraisals were performed prior
to the acquisition, the appraised value adjusted for inflation as of August 31, 1995, less
accumulated depreciation as of October 31, 1997, was used as the fair value recorded at
acquisition date by the Company.

The software line includes the costs that were necessary to implement an integrated SAP R/3
administrative-accounting and management control system. These charges are being
amortized following the straight - line method over five years as from the start-up date.

The values of the fixed assets thus determined are disclosed net of the corresponding accumulated
depreciation, calculated using the straight-line method, over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which
are specified below:

Assets Years
BUIIINES 1ottt et raeeer et e s et am s s ra bbb e nen s e 50
Buildings improvements .... 10
Machinery and equipment.. 10
Facilities.....cccocooeveriencennne 10
Computer hardware... 5
Software............. 5
Fumniture and fixture .. 10
VEhICIES conevvevereeetee et 5
Molds, plastic trays, containers, platforms and cases .. 5
SPAFE PAITS ...orveiictieniinic et st b b ar bt ea e e bty 10

The values of the fixed assets, taken as a whole, do not exceed their recoverable value.




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 4: Accounting Principles (Continued)
g. Intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price paid for the companies' shares acquired over the
fair value of their net assets.

Such values arose from the Company’s (direct or indirect) purchase of shares in Fargo S.A., Pemsa S.A.,
Panificacién Argentina S.AL.C., Panino S.A., Enicor S.A., Gouguenheim S.A., Distribuidora Argentina de
Comestibles S.A.L.C.F.A., Comparifa FEGOPRE de Valores Mobiliarios y Garantfa S.A., Fluxinvest S.A,,
Capital Foods S.A., Fresh Food S.A. and Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de Argentina S.A..

The aforementioned goodwill values are amortized following the straight-line method over a twenty-
year period, counted as from the month following that of their capitalization.

The Company makes regular (annual) evaluations of the recoverability of the initial investment based on
updated projections. As a result of the evaluations made during the fiscal years 2001 and 2000, the Company
decided to reduce the value of the initial investment by Ps. 10,130,000 and 5,059,800, respectively.

Other intangible assets:

¢ Financing fees and expenses related to bank loan: Represent expenses and fees incurred in relation
to the "Bridge Loan" obtained by the Company to issue the negotiable bonds mentioned in Note
23.a. to the unconsolidated financial statements. These expenses were fully amortized following
the straight-line method over the term set for repaying the loan.

Furthermore, this line also includes the expenses incurred in connection with the "Senior Secured
Revolving Credit Agreement” settled on July 27, 2000, as well as those corresponding to the
“Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement” mentioned in Note 23.b. to the
unconsolidated financial statements. These charges are stated at cost and are being amortized on a
straight - line method over the life of the related loans.

¢ Expenses related to negotiable bonds: They correspond to costs and fees incurred in relation to the
issuance and registration of negotiable bonds on July 27, 1998 and March 30, 1999. These charges
are stated at cost and are amortized following the straight-line method, over the same term of the
aforementioned financing (See Note 23.a. to the unconsolidated financial statements).

¢ Reorganization and development of new projects expenses: They correspond to expenses incurred
by the Company regarding its reorganization (purchase of the Company’s shares and the merger
process). These expenses are stated at cost and were fully amortized following the straight-line
method over a three-year period beginning July 1, 1998. In addition, this line includes expenses
relating to new projects, which were fully amortized following the straight-line method over the
term set from their implementation.

h. Other assets

- Spare parts:

They are valued at their acquisition cost.

- Inactive assets:

Assets (mainly machinery) that have been reclassified from Fixed Assets, as they have been withdrawn
from use. These assets are valued at their acquisition cost, net of their applicable accumulated

depreciation, calculated following the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 4: Accounting Principles (Continued)
- Assets delivered under a loan for use agreement:

They are valued at their acquisition cost, net of their accumulated depreciation calculated under the
straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of the assets.

- Promotional Materials:

Promotional materials are used by the Company to promote and increase the knowledge of the
trademark. These assets are valued at their acquisition cost.

The value of other assets, taken as a whole, does not exceed their recoverable value.
i. Provisions for litigation, contingencies and allowances
- Deducted from assets:

The Company booked a bad debt allowance based on the estimated uncollectibility risk and set up an
inventory valuation allowance, corresponding to the difference between cost and realizable values.

- Included under liabilities:

The Company is involved in legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising from the ordinary course of
business. Provisions have been established to cover losses on litigation matters and other probable
contingencies and for which amounts can be reasonably determined, based on the Company lawyers’s
report.

J- Income tax and tax on Minimum Notional Income ( “Impuesto a la Ganancia Minima Presunta”)

As a result of the accumulated tax loss carryforwards, the Company did not recognize an income tax
provision at the end of the fiscal year.

Law No. 25,063 enacted a tax on minimum notional income for ten fiscal years. This tax is
supplementary to income tax, as while the latter is levied on the taxable net income for the year, the former is
levied on the potential income from certain assets at a rate of 1%, and the Company must pay the higher of these
two taxes.

Any excess of the tax on minimum notional income over and above income tax in a given fiscal year
may be computed as a payment on account of the income tax to arise in the next ten fiscal years, as established by
Law No. 25,360 published in the Official Bulletin dated December 12, 2000, thus amending the original term
initially set at four fiscal years.

The tax on minimum notional income corresponding to the current fiscal year was considered as a non-
current receivable, as shown in Note 7.

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of this tax based on updated projections;
therefore Compaiiia de Alimentos Fargo S.A. and Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de Argentina
S.A. have covered their accumulated tax at December 31, 2001 with an allowance, because they have determined
that the possibility of offsetting it with income tax to be generated in the terms mentioned above is uncertain.




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 4: Accounting Principles (Continued)
k. Results for the year

Profit and loss items are shown in the currency values of the year to which they correspond, except for
the charges for assets consumed (fixed asset and other assets depreciation and intangible asset amortization),
which were determined based on the values of such assets.

Financial gains/(losses) are shown separately, depending on whether they are generated by assets or
liabilities.

l. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents as
well as banks and readily realizable investments are treated as cash. The Company follows the indirect method,
which calls for a series of adjustments to the results of the year in order to arrive at the funds generated by
operations or used for them.

m. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assessments which
affect the amounts of contingent assets and liabilities disclosed at the date of these financial statements, as well as
the income and expenses recorded during the year. The Company’s management makes estimates to calculate,
for example, the allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation and amortization charges, the recoverable value of
assets, the valuation allowance for inventories and the provision for contingencies and taxes. However, the actual
future results may differ from the estimates and assessments made at the date of these financial statements.

Note 5: Cash and banks

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

Cash (Schedule G) . 456,326 688,131
Petty cash....ccocvvernnane 4,396 39,054
Banks in local currency ......ccoeevceerenene . 2,752,265 1,573,285
Banks in foreign currency (Schedule G) ....oovecciiiinviicnincinirece 91,810 213,212

3,304,797 2,513,682

Note 6: Accounts receivable, net
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Trade accounts receivable (Schedule G) ...ovcviiivieiiiie e 20,597,473 25,637,907
NOLES TEEEIVADIE .....ovvreiveiitieie et eee et e b e s et tae et stesteetessentssrnrsneansetnstnsnas 1,054,501 840,719
Less:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Schedule E) .......cccovvvviviniiciveeicriie e, (5,144,135) (567.427)
16,507,839 25,911,199

Non-Current
Debtors under legal proceedings ........covcovcivniirc vt 2,663,850 2,350,890
INOLES TECEIVADIE ... .ovvevierieerteere et cctteeeere e ees e etensemesaesas e seaeteete s easbenessssesaas 408,782 123,644
Less:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Schedule E} .......coovvvivivvicnniiiicnniniieenrienennn (1,925,030) (1,658,471)

1,147,602 816,063
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(Continued)

Note 7: Other receivables

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31,2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

Current
Tax eredits and WithhOIdINES ....cvveveeremcrccrneinrcmereencreees e s 1,461,238 1,728,500
Advances to suppliers (Schiedule G)..voevivrimnciinincii e 372,106 551,490
Companies under article 33 Law 19,550 (Note 18 and Schedule G)................. - 1,283,974
Prepaid insurance (Schedule G) ..o 8,220 33,604
AQVANCES 10 EMPIOYELS ..oovriviiereiitinisie ettt ettt 63,876 167,785
Prepaid expenses (Schedule G) ... e et 35,849 217,612
Prepaid advertising eXPENSES ........o.covueiiviiueiriermnmesiesinsismssscessssessensnsiesaonns - 67,504
Receivables from legal proceedings.. 90,643 90,643
Other (Schedule G) .....cooierninreracne 659,112 538.689

2,691,064 4,679,801
Non-Current
Asset tax credit 5,032,173 5,981,885
Allowance for asset tax credit (Schedule E) oo (4,767,791) -
Other (SChedule G) ..cvreveeecriiecceet e 42,865 85,853

307,247 6,067,738
Note 8: Inventories, net
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
{Pesos) {Pesos)

GOOAS FOT FESALE .evetie ettt s 253,165 324,617
FIniShed Z00MS ....c.vueveviieiiirnn ittt e 457,869 378,358
WOTK 11 PIOCESS c.cviriiieeeieres st beb e eb s et st st r s e 142,391 214,516
Raw materials and packaging materials ..........cocovminminiieimimecin e, 2,049,076 2,578,591
Subtotal (Schedule F).....c.o.ccovviieviciirnc st av e 2,902,501 3,496,082
AAVANCES 1O SUPPHETS -.ovevveceiericreiinniitseies st et s e 163 69,607
GOOAS M ITARSIL.1vrveriveecire e s b s en s et 14,527 42,286
Less:
Valuation allowance of inventories (Schedule E)..ooovvvivvoneivvnn (1,823) (57,031)

2915368 3,550,944
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(Continued)

Note 9: Other assets

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesas)
Current
SDATE PATTS ..ccevereverersrneremireassertanmsesesasasstseseresesesersassssserearsasnescarsssessenrssresseesasosss 1,037,053 862,682
Promotional MAIEHAL . .......ocvvieviiric i cese e s s cetea e esbabesresresee e e seesraera e 123,918 227,610
OHHET .ttt b e bt sttt R b bbbttt 68473 27,162
1,229,444 1,117,454
Non-Current
Spare parts.... 812,503 1,092,901
INACTIVE @SSEIS...ouiiireiitiiiieceinrieie et eesiaeebe s vt esaseesbr et st taesasassesesnasmeebsenseesserensaans 370,029 669,130
Assets delivered O 0N ......ccovuiiriirirenecner e resesr et s senens 906,786 927,185
2,089,318 2,689,216
Note 10:Accounts payable
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Local suppliers (Schedule G) .......cocooccviiinin e 21,234,838 19,206,148
Foreign suppliers (Schedule G) 208,144 215,339
Unbilled by suppliers (Schedule G)......coocvviiiiiniiiine e 3,452,890 3,679,254
24,985,872 23,100,741
Non-Current
Local Suppliers (Schedule G) ......cooeveeeriiicrncirccenitinci et 122,082 449,112
122,082 449,112
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Note 11: Short-term and long-term debt

Note 12:

COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

Short-term debt

Uncollateralized bank debt - Principal amount (Schedule G)
Collateralized bank debt — Principal amount (1) (Schedule G)
Collateralized bank debt-Accrued interest (1) (Schedule G)
Uncollateralized bank debt-Accrued interest (Schedule G)

Long-term debt

Negotiable bonds-Principal amount (1) (Schedule G
Collateralized bank debt — Principal amount (1) (Schedule G)

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

- 2,500,000
12,000,000 3,500,000
7,057,233 7,273,125
- 18,799
19,057,233 13,291,924
120,000,000 120,000,000
18,000,000 26,500,000
138.000,000 146,500,000

(1) Details on issuance of negotiable bonds and of the Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement are mentioned
in Note 23 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Salaries and social security payable

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

Current

Salaries Payable ..........cociiriir

Social security payable

Accrual for vacation and other

Indemnities to personnel (Note 21 d.) ..cveeeveeiiencriniincinieniees

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
1,478,098 61,397
987,658 1,093,777
1,409,922 840,324
1,979,520 261,071
5,855,198 2,256,569




Note 13:

Note 14:

COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Taxes payable

(Continued)

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current )
Minimum notional income tax provision, Net........ooerocrimininicninnies 67,775 806,701
Tax on corporate indebtedness ..o 319,451 1,099,221
VAT Payable, DO ...t st sense e sies 1,974,906 876,690
VAT WIthhOIdingS ..vcoviviriiiinii et e 119,183 158,980
Income tax WithhOIAINGS ......ccocvieriviiiiei e 111,591 118,287
Turnover tax payable, Nel........ccoovirerneievciicneiec st crcneencnin 55,256 72,181
Tumover tax WithhoMiNgS.......ccvivniererineicnire s 80,964 93,930
ONET 1ttt et s s bbb as st e eb snes 171,164 91,225
2,900,290 3,317,215
Non-Current
Tumover tax payable - Moratoria..........ccocvmerimecrmen e, 6,164 18,491
6.164 18,491
Other liabilities
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Guarantee deposits received from customers (Schedule G} ... 537,824 645212
Debt for the acquisition of fixed assets (Schedule G) ..o, 219,266 238,158
Debr for the acquisition of subsidiaries (1) (Schedule G) .........ccoooerennn. 5,603,854 -
Indemnity agreements payable ... 3,600 23,600
Other (SChedule G)..cueveeriorienireniereenscerececsrniare e s st 472,380 115,688
6,836,924 1,022,658
Non-Current
Guarantee deposits received from CUStOMErS. ....cocovovriierieiniiinicnieenne 4,625 16,290
Debt for the acquisition of fixed assets (Schedule G) ..ccoveviviviviiiiiennns 74,130 187,310
Indemnity agreements Payable ..o 37,800 41,400
L0131 OO TS OO P RO PO UR OO UOUSUPUPO PP 5,900 3,700
122,455 248,700

(1) Includes $ 3.344.018 for liabilities in schemes of arrangement that were deducted from the purchase price of the subsidiary.
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Note 15: Net sales

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain/ (loss)
(Pesos) {Pesos)

Sales of bakery products (1) 132,025,670 138,426,844
Sales of packaging (1)...... 1,979,931 1,401,090
Exports reimbursements (2).... 185,933 -
Less: »
SAIES TUTTIOVET 18X, c..cevveiereeereveeerstiemtas e eeeresesteesatnstersasansessesaessensesessasasasesrene (809,600) (825,259)

133,381,934 139,002,675

(1) Net sales are adjusted for discounts and retums, if applicable.

(2) Correspond to the percentage to the percentage of the FOB value of exports, which was established through a Convergence
Factor provided by Resolution No. 803/2001 of the Ministry of Economy and Public Works and Utilities, published in the
Official Gazette on June 18, 2001, which regulates a temporary regime to foster exports. Furthermore, that line includes
exports reimbursements, which under Resolution No. 220/2001, were reinstated for goods exported to Mercosur country
members.

Note 16: Other expenses and income, net

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2601 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain / (loss)
(Pesos) (Pesos)
RECOVETY OF BXPEISES. c..ovcvvoeevreraneenereseessessasiaeseseesesssssssereseeneensseessereessracnsenes 71,780 © 68,010
Gain from the sale of property, plant and equipment ..........o..coooriecenireonnnns 198,801 464,178
Indemnities 10 PErSONNEL.......cccoveriniriiiniiniri i e (2,527,421) (1,449,824)
Net gain/(1oss) on milling SeIVICes......oievirmimeenn i (453,527 (13,137)
OTHEL (1) 1vieeiieicm et ettt es e s et s aee b n s bbb s (799.731) (436,814)
(3,510,098) (1,367,587)

(1) At December 31, 2001, the net book value of Ps 193,450 of other unusable assets written off has been included.




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Note 17: Financial results, net

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain / (oss)
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Generated by assets:
Interest income (NOTE 18) ...oooiii ittt 263,423 292,572
Exchange difference......cooniieeiciciiinne i s (377,382) (481)
Holding (loss)/gain on inventories and others .........ccoccvvvviiercccrmnrncencenrens (229,941) 114,006
(343,900) 406,097

Generated by liabilities:
[NTEIEST EXPEISE o.eoviiiriinicirciiet sttt rena e et eb s e e ene e (19,479,422) (19,320,809)
Exchange Qifference... ..o 21,280 (46,726)
Amortization of bank charges and loans expenses (Schedule B) ................... (582,615) (735,779)
Amortization of expenses on issuance and registration of negotiable bonds
(SCHEARIE B) ..cerrineerieeerecre e rameesceerervercenesstsass e reesesseenease e sessicseensenensracecucs (769,188) (769.201)
Tax on corporate indebtedness. (923,137) (2,999,541)
OTHEL ettt s e sb e s se et s bk se s st (348,793) (587,694)

(22,081,875) (24,459,750)
Net fINANCIAL FESUIIS oovivvviveeriiiieeee ettt ereeetesre s s et ests et e et s sterreereersesteneestasserseas (22,425,775) {24,053,653)

Note 18: Companies under Article 33 Law 19,550

The balances and operations with companies under Art. 33 Law 19,550 as of December 31, 2001 and

2000 and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, are as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

ASSETS
Other receivables
Global Foods Co. (1) oo iss s - 1,283,974
Total SSets........ccocoviviriiiiiiir e s 1,283,974
OPERATIONS
Interest from loans
Global Foods Co. (1). 70,195 103,356
Total INCOME........coriieiiiie et et e 70.195 103,356

(1) Controlling Company of the majority shareholder of Compafia de Alimentos Fargo S.A..
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 19: Additional information on assets and liabilities

The breakdown of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 is as follows:

Accounts Other -
Receivable receivables Total
ASSETS (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
To mature
1% QUANTET 2002 ......voiern e tcaesecrstos e senss e rstseers e st sns st ssbseaes s 12,149,443 992,833 13,142,276
2P QUATEET 2002 ...ovvovorrerneneessesssssscassresse e e sessssssssssermsmese st ssesessssees e 168,377 1,113,662 1,282,039
3% QUATLET 2002..000001mmmsreenesessessssssssssssnssenessssssessessesssssssecsnessisstsssssosssoesoes v 99,584 20,003 119,587
A QUALEE 2002......ecvvo s vreseeeeer s esse et s sen et s 4 74,807 28.542 103,349
More than one year.........ccvvuineee 1,147,602 307,247 1,454,849
Subtotal. 13,639,813 2,462,287 16,102,100
No fixed ... 71,394 408,960 480,354
PaSEAUE ...t e e 3,944,234 127.064 4,071,298
TOLAL....oiiirircce e seesesse e sensesnasensensnsssssisesrnnnes s one (1) 17,655,441 2,998,311 20,653.752
Not accruing interest ... 16,985,407 2,998,311 19,983,718
ALAfIXEATRIE .o 670,034 - 670,034
TOAL. ..o et s s 0] 17,655,441 2.998.311 20.653.752
(1) Shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Salaries and
social
Accounts  Shori-term and  security Taxes Other
payable long-term debt payable payable liabilities Provisions Total
LIABILITIES (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos) (Pesos)
To mature
1% quarter 2002 ......ocoreeverreencreoneeniserecisnnnninsne 17,753,644 7,057,233 3,590,767 1,848,592 459,424 - 30,709,660
1,095,195 4,000,000 636,518 753,393 104,063 - 6,589,169
128,192 - 194,450 172.004 60,182 - 554,828
9,765 4,500,000 10,335 35616 60,934 - 4,616,650
122,082 138,000,000 - 6,164 122455 2274934 140,525.635
Subtotal ... 19,108,878 153,557,233 4,432,070 2.815.769 807,058  2.274.934 182.995.942
No fixed lerm ....cccviircerinncirenienineen, . 115,981 - 1,420,226 3,598 634,510 - 2,174,315
Past due 5.883.095 3,500,000 2,902 87.087 5,517,811 - 14,990,895
Total . e i 25,107.954 157,057,233 5,855,198 2,906,454 6,959,379 2,274,934 200,161,152
NOt 8CCTUING IMELESE.... . cvvrvevrovirrioreeeeisinecnsiaires 24,518,708 7,057,233 5,461,406 873,804 3,835,038 - 41,746,189
AL FIXA TR (1) oo sssessoe s 589,246 120,000,000 393,792 2,032,650 3,124,341 2,274,934 128,414,963
At a variable rate (2).... . - 30.000,000 - - - - 30,000,000
TOtAl ..o s 25,107,954 157,057.233 5,855,198 2,906,454 6,959,379 2,274,934 200.161,152

(1) Negotiable bonds accrue interest at an annual rate of 13.25%.

(2) The loan agreement called “Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement” accrues an annual interest rate of 8.25%.
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

Note 20: Assets collateralizing debt

Further to the information provided in Note 17 to the unconsolidated financial statements of Compaiiia
de Alimentos Fargo S.A., in connection with the new loan agreement referred to in Note 23.b. to the
unconsolidated financial statements, the Company has granted new security in favour of Bankers Trust
Company, instead of the earlier security granted to it, as follows: ‘

- Pledge on subsidiaries’ shares: senior pledge on the Company’s equity interests in its controlled
companies Panificacién Argentina S.A I.C., Capital Foods S.A. and Enicor S.A..

To comply with the provisions of the loan agreement, on May 24, 2001, a senior pledge was set up on
Fresh Food S.A.’s shares that had been acquired by the Company (Note 28 to the unconsolidated financial
statements).

- Pledge on trademarks: Senior pledge with conveyance on certain trademarks owned by the Company, as
well as of its controlled companies Panificacién Argentina S.A.I.C. and Capital Foods S.A., for up to US$ 30
million.

- Pledge on Machinery and Mortgages: Senior pledges and mortgages with conveyance on certain
machinery and properties owned by the Company and its controlled company Panificacién Argentina S.A.I.C. for
up to US$ 30 million in each case.

As of December 31, 2001, the breakdown of assets subject to a security interest is as follows:

Institution that Amount owed at Type of
Description Book value grants the loan 12.31.01 guarantee
Properties 17,827,543 Bankers Trust Company (2) 30432233 ‘Mortgage (3)
Machinery 10,380,390 Bankers Trust Company (2) 30,432,233 Pledge ()
Trademarks i 19,333 Bankers Trust Company 2) 30,432,233 Pledge (3)

(1)  As of December 31, 2001 they were fully amortized, except for the Capital Foods S.A. rademarks.

(2) This relates to the new loan agreement for US$ 30 million, plus interest accrued at the end of the year (Note 23.b. to the
unconsolidated financial statements).

(3) The principal secured is for up to US$ 30 million for each type of collateral.

Note 21: Significant events

a. Because of the Company’s difficult economic situation and the deep economic crisis in
Argentina as indicated in Note 1, after the closing date the Company failed to pay the interest
accrued on negotiable obligations in the amount of US$ 7.9 million, which became due on
February 1, 2002. The Company communicated this non-fulfillment to the regulatory agencies in
due time and also informed Citibank N.A., as trustee, about its intention to restructure its
obligations under the trust agreement in order to reflect Argentina’s present prospects and the
Company’s ability to generate cash flows.

Because of the circumstances described above, if the Company fails to remedy the non-
fulfillment within 30 days, the trustee can, through a written notification to the Company, or the
holders of negotiable obligations representing at least 25% of the total principal amount owed
can, or the trustee following a written request by such bondholders must, declare the lapsing of
all the terms established in the trust agreement and, therefore, all the amounts owed under the
trust agreement will become immediately due and payable.
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 21: Significant events (Continued)

At any time once all the terms have been declared lapsed, as mentioned above, and until the
trustee or any of the bondholders obtain a ruling for the payment of the amounts owed under the
trust agreement, the bondholders representing the majority of the amounts owed, through a
written notification to the trustee and the Company, can revoke such statement and its
consequences, provided (1) the Company pays to, or deposits with, the trustee an amount which is
sufficient to cover the payment of all interest due, unpaid principal (owed for reasons other than
the declaration of lapsing), additional amounts or premiums, if applicable, which may be due
and payable plus interest accrued on those amounts and any expenses incurred by the trustee, its
agents or advisors, and (ii) all other non-fulfillment, if any, is remedied or waived.

The above does not infringe the bondholders’ individual rights, as they are entitled to file a
summary lawsuit against the Company to claim payment of the principal, interest, and additional
amounts, if any, which may be due and payable under section 29 of the Negotiable Obligations
Law.

b. At year end, the Company has failed to comply with some economic and financial indicators
agreed in the loan agreement mentioned in Note 23.b. to the individual financial statements,
regarding minimum EBITDA levels, ratio of consolidated interest coverage and consolidated
indebtedness ratio, as well as the payment of the first two principal installments for US$ 1.5
million and USS 2 million, which were due on August 1 and November 1, 2001, respectively.

After the closing date, the Company also failed to comply with the payment of interest on this
loan for US$ 650,389, which was due on February 1, 2002.

Because of the market situation and these selective non-fulfillments, the Company is re-
negotiating the maturity of the principal and interest installments under the loan mentioned
above. The Company’s Board expects to conclude re-negotiation of the loan terms satisfactorily
and obrain a waiver from Deutsche Bank and Bankers Trust Company, in the understanding that
nothing will adversely affect such negotiation. If the Company does not remedy the current
situation or an agreement is not reached, the administrative agent (Bankers Trust Company
"B.T.") can request the early repayment of the entire loan, which has not yet taken place.

The lack of such an agreement might affect the original terms of the issuance of negotiable
obligations described in paragraph a. to the individual financial statements, so the principal due
(US$ 120 million) may become immediately payable in advance.

c. On December 29, 1999, the Company signed a share purchase and sale agreement for 99.9985%
of the corporate capital and votes of Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de
Argentina S.A., a deal which was to be closed subject to the compliance with certain conditions
set out in the agreement.

On March 6, 2002, the parties agreed to close the purchase of 99.9985% of the corporate capital

and votes of the company mentioned above by the Company, effective as from December 31,
2001.
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 21: Significant events (Continued)

At December 31, 2001, the amount of advances to the seller totaled US$ 10.8 million. The
balance of the price for this acquisition is approximately US$ 5.5 million, which has been
capitalized as part of the final purchase price.

As this year the Company continued to suffer the effects of the deep economic recession
mentioned in Note 1, it decided to write down the investment made in this company by §
7,749,072 and set up an allowance of $ 2,910,858 for the balances due from it.

d. Considering that the market recession mentioned in Note 1 has continued to impact the
Company’s sales during the current year and, therefore, its operating results, the Company’s
Board is re-defining a strategic business plan, which encompasses a financial and operating
restructuring.

Based on the above, the Company decided to re-assign resources in various areas and terminate

around 100 employees. This decision would generate an actual cost of approximately $ 1
million, which is covered by an allowance this year.
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
Other Consolidated Investments

Principal account and characteristics
Current

Time Deposits Ps

Mutal fund in Ps. ..ocevieeievvrecvieeceeeens
Total Current Other Investments.......

Non-Current

Properties - Net carrying value....................

Total Non-Current Other Investments

Schedule D
Net book value as of Net book value as of
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
. 759,071
- 1,949,168
- 2,708,239
153,534 156,174
153,534 156,174
153,534 2,864,413
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
- For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
Consolidated Provisions

Schedule E
Value at the Additions due to Balance as of Balance as of
beginning of the  the acquisition Additions for Deductions for December 31, December 31,
year of subsidiaries the year the year 2001 2000
Items (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) {Pesos)
Deducted from assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2) .......... 2,225,898 27,979 (1) 5,000,568 (185.280) 7,069,165 2,225,898
QObsolescence / slow moving reserve ......... 57,031 - - (55,208) 1,823 57,031
Allowance for assets taX ........couomrrrrnevene - 109.849 4,657,942 - 4,761,791 -
Subtotal 2,282,929 137,828 9,658,510 (240.488) 11,838,779 2282929
Included under non-current liabilities
Provisions for 1awsuits ..........ccoeecrerine 2,125,251 35,897 464,084 (350,298) 2,274,934 2,125,251
Subtotal 2125251 35897 () 464,084 (350,298) 2.274.94 2,125,251
Total as of December 31, 2001 ...... 4,408,180 173,725 10,122,594 (590,786) 14,113,713 -
Total as of December 31,2000................ 3,731,369 13,506 1,137,301 (473.996) - 4.408.180

(1)  Ps. 2,910,838 are included in “Extraordinary Results” and Ps. 2,089,710 in Scheduie H.
(2)  See Note 24 to the unconsolidated financial statements of Compafifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A..
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
~ For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 '
Consolidated Cost of Sales

Schedule F
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

Inventory balance at the beginning of the Year........c.ococveecnennninennncencrnnees 3,496,082 3,852,571
Additions due to the acquisition of subsidiaries 19,824 27,675
Plus:
PUTCHASES fOT THE YEAT ...eviruriiiecerecmeriienee et ene st sese e es e s e e es 36,507,521 39,530,676
Production expenses (Schedule H)...ooicoevirerniericnicorrir e ies oo 32,919,150 30,628,452
Less:
Inventory balance at the end of the year (Note 8) (2,902,501) (3,496,082)
COSE OF SAIES .....ovovvieireei sttt e sttt stestsaete e st e be s era et e s besbanraeseesenbens 70,040,076 70,543,292
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
Consolidated Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities

December 31, 2001

Schedule G

December 31, 2000

Current  Amount in local Current Amount in local
Type and amount of  exchange currency Type and amount of  exchange currency
foreign currency  rate (1) (Pesos) foreign currency rate (2) (Pesos)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and banks.......cooovrivccercnrecrernnens, USS 92,817 1 92,817 US$ 217,452 1 217.452
Accounts receivable, net.........oecviecnienns Uss 245,529 i 245,529 US$ 245,886 1 245,886
Other receivables .......c.oceveninirinirirnnie Uss 83,613 1 83,613 US$ 1,669,592 1 1,669,592
Total Current ASSetS..........coocrerveecrecreeenns 421,959 2,132,930
Non-Current Assets
Other receivables .....oocoonvivvcinncccenens Uss 8,670 1 8,670 USS 18,670 1 18,670
Advances to suppliers (purchase of
property, plant and equipment) .................. USs 99,583 I 99.583 USS 105,373 1 105,373
Total Non-Current Assets ..............c...... 108,253 124,043
Total ASSeLS.........ccoovmmcvimmecereriiriveerccveniins 530,212 2,256.973
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,744.187 1 1,744,187 USS 935,834 1 935,834
ShoOrt~erm debl......eorerercecrenrecrcnens US$ 19,057.233 1 19.057.233 USs 12,776,458 1 12,776,458
Other Habilities .......oveecerricerrmeremrreerieiies Uss 2,483,703 1 2.483,703 US$ 245,453 1 245453
Total Current Liabilities ...........c.c.cc..... 23,285,123 13,957,745
Non-Current Liabilities
Account payable ... Us$ - 1 - USS 356,627 1 356,627
Long-term debt ... US$ 138,000,000 1 138,000,000 USS 146,500,000 1 146,500,000
Other Habilities ...o.voveeermerecrronmreneernnecnne Uss$ 74,130 1 74,130 US$ 187,310 1 187,310
Total Non-Current Liabilities ................. 138,074,130 147,043,937
Total Liabilities...........ccoovevvcrimrencnin. 161,359,253 161,001,682

(1) Official exchange rate at December 31, 2001, in accordance with Resolution N° 392 of the National Securities Commission.
(2) Official exchange rate prevailing at December 31, 2000,
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Information required

under Art, 64, clause (b) of Law 19,550
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

Schedule H
General and
Total as of Administrative Total as of
December 31, 2001 Production cost Expenses Selling Expenses December 31, 2000

Item (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
Fees and payments for services............ 6,286,649 2.062.889 2,991,022 1,232,738 5,763,034
Salaries and Wages.........rvrverioniinnns 27,365,746 13,719,967 4,346,555 9,299,224 26,865,930
Social security contributions............... 4,587,789 2,407.293 660,532 1,519.964 4,895,136
Travel and other employee expenses ... 2,515,370 890,319 551,857 1,073,194 2,211,475
Freight and transportation..........c......... 10,322,998 34,909 4,430 10,283,659 9,638,010
Advertising and promotion...........e...... 13,849.226 - - 13,849,226 10,684,201
Insurance ... 365,682 104,999 87,362 173,321 410,637
Import and eXport eXpenses ................ 208,756 5,567 - 203,189 257.361
Security SETVICES. ... ewmmmmrmereiecenisisriinens 844,481 522,808 56,884 264,789 829,810
Electicity, fuel, maintenance and
TEPAITS..evvcrracmsiemsrraesniseenrveeresserea 5,494,556 3,806,856 652,121 1,035,579 5,303,436
Taxes and contributions........cc....evvene. 3,357,021 1,350,296 790,431 1,216,254 2,829,346
Depreciation of fixed assets................. 9,338,138 6,340,064 1,181,708 1,816,366 9,033,353
Amontization of intangible assets......... 22,756,314 138,715 20,389,243 2,228,356 14,886,553
Depreciation of other assets................ 271,939 - 271,939 140,815
Defaulting debtors ... 2,089,710 - - 2,089,710 672,624
LAWSUILS 1..cvceerecrconeienesvccaeeenines 464,084 316.229 32,735 115,120 456,637
LEASES cvvvvvririesiimsnserasesimisnsis st snaenesens 1,391,709 416.894 158,313 816,502 1,615,761
OHET c.virvecreinir e essesar s, 1,666,424 801,345 423805 441,274 952,727
Total as of December 31, 2001 .......... 113,176,592 32,919,150 32,326,998 47,930,444 -
Tatal as of December 31, 2000 .......... - 30.628.452 26.453.514 40,364,880 97.446.846
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Summary of Activities
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

1 BRIEF COMMENTS ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

This analysis should be read in conjunction with the December 31, 2001 and 2000 financial statements
of the Company, which have been prepared following the provisions of General Resolution No. 368/01 issued by
the National Securities Commission.

The Company recorded net sales for $ 133.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2001, 4.0%
less than in the prior year. This decrease, of around $ 5.6 million, was the result of the drop in loaf bread, buns
and others mainly attributable to the effect that the overall economic situation is having on the industry in
general.

However, sales of ultra-frozen products went up due to a greater demand for this type of products, which
have significant potential growth. '

Operating expenses (cost of goods sold and administrative and marketing expenses) during 2001 were
around $ 150.3 million, compared to $ 137.4 million in the prior year, a 9.4% increase.

The main factors which had an influence on operating expenses are:

- Higher advertising and product placement charges, which totaled $ 13.8 million in 2001, $ 3.2
million more than in the prior year. This increase is basically due to higher discount
percentages granted to supermarkets, under the new agreements signed with them, and also to
actions taken to create awareness of the Fargo brand by launching a new commercial through
mass media.

- Higher intangible asset amortization expenses, due to the accelerated amortization of goodwill
forming part of the initial investment, as a result of evaluations carried out this year (Note 4.g).

- Tax, rates and contribution expenses increased $ 0.5 million compared with the ycar 2000. This
increase is mainly due to a new tax on bank current account debits and credits, which was
enacted in April 2001.

- The charge for updating the allowance for bad debts increased $ 1.4 million, due to the
economic situation in Argentina already mentioned.

Financial losses generated by liabilities totaled $ 22.1 million in 2001, which is 9.8% less than the § 24.5
million recorded in the prior year. The decrease in these expenses is mainly attributable to the schedule to reduce
the tax on Negotiable Obligation interest as from January 1, 2001 to be repealed effective July 1, 2002, as well as
to Decree 1054/01, dated August 22, 2001 (Note 30 to the individual financial statements).

Other income and expenses totaled $ 3.5 million during the present year, which is $2.1 million more
than the $1.4 million recorded last year. This fluctuation is due to a higher charge for severance indemnities
associated with the severe restructuring implemented.

The charge to income for the tax on minimum notional income is due to the fact that the Company

considers that offsetting of this tax against income tax to be generated within the terms set by Law 25.360, as
amended, is uncertain (Note 4.j).
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Summary of Activities
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

The extraordinary income/(loss) line includes the allowance for the impaired value of the investment in
Sacaan, as well as the allowance for balances due from that Company (Note 24 to the individual financial

statements).

2 BALANCE SHEET STRUCTURE

At 12.31.01 At 12.31.00 At12.31.99 At 12.31.98
{Pesos) (Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos)
Current Assets 26,648,512 40,481,319 33,670,396 32,126,694
Non-Current Assets 196,739,341 229,600,097 236,759,776 234,346,704
Total 223,387,853 270,081,416 270,430,172 266,473,398
At 12.31.01 At 12.31.00 At 12.31.99 At 12,3198
(Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos)
Current Liabilities 59,635,517 42,989,107 46,872,496 26,853,962
Non-Current Liabilities 140,525,635 149,341,554 122,026,670 132,849,893
Subtotal 200,161,152 192,330,661 168,899,166 159,703,855
Shareholders' Equity 23,226,701 717,750,755 101,531,006 106,769,543
Total 223,387,853 270,081,416 270,430,172 266,473,398
3. INCOME AND EXPENSE STRUCTURE
For the year ended | For the year ended For the ended For the year ended
12.31.01 12.31.00 12.31.99 12.31.98
{Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
Operating profit (16,915,584) 1,640,989 11,487,332 5,936,777
Other expenses and income, net - (loss) (3,510,098) (1,367,587) (6,114,641) (807,566)
Financial results, net - (loss) (22,425,775) (24,053,633) (20,611,228) (20,834,690)
Equity in income of affiliated company - Profit - - 20,011
Net operating loss (42,851,457) (23,780,251) (15,238,537) (15,685,468)
Minority interest - - - (625,.215)
Income tax / Minimum Notional Income tax (4,657,942) - (3,014,114)
Ordinary results (47,509,399) (23,780,251} (15,238,537) (19,324,797)
Extraordinary results (10,659,930) - -
Net loss for the year (58,169,329) (23,780,251) (15,238,537) (19,324,797)
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Summary of Activities
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

4. STATISTICS

Production Volume Sales Volume Domestic Market Exponis
(1ons) (tons} Sales (10n5) {1ons)
At At AL At Al Al At A At At At A A A At At
Production Line | 12.31.01]12.31.00112.31.99 | 12.31.98 | 12.31.01 {12.31.00{12.31.99 | 12.31.98 [ 12.31.01 { 12.31.00| 12.31.99 4 12.31 98| 12.31.01 | 12.31.00]12.31.99 | 12.31 .98
Buss 16905| 18.292] 18.689) 17,743] 15767) 16868} 17,561 16.585| 1a664| 15856] 16596] 15687] 1103] 1012 965 898
Sliced Bread 38475] 38.684| 40760| 40.534| 35484 35063| 37243 37.243| 34347| 339851 35765] 3s9| 1137] 1078 1478 135
Frozen Dough 19491) 17,089) 12914] 4980 19470) 17,08:| 13,581] 4972 17.9:7) 15891} 13s5:) a72) 1553 1190 60 180
Other Products 12326] 14.515) 17200} 16885 11,765| 14.4841 15.590] 15974 11.666] 14355] 15425] 15816 % 129 165 158
Total §7.1971 88.580| 89.563| ®0.142{ 82.486| 83.296! 83975| 7a774| 78.594| s0.087) si3o7r]| 72203 3892 3a00) 26s8] 2551
5. RATIOS
At 12.31.01 A1 12.31.00 At 12.31.99 At 12.31.98
Current ratio 045 0.94 0.72 1.20
Debt-to-Equity 8.62 247 1.66 1.50
Ordinary profitability before asset
tax/income tax 67.2% -23.4% “13.1% - -12.8%

6. BRIEF COMMENT ON THE COMPANY’S PROSPECTS

The Company expects to continue to be the leader in its traditional lines and further develop those
launched in recent years, as well as to continue to actively seek to improve its results; to which end it is working
to increase its sales, improve the use of its resources and reduce expenses.

Buenos Aires, March 8, 2002

Marcelo Aubone
Vice - President
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Free English translation of Financial Statements
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(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)




(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with

COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
as of December 31, 2001 and 2000

Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

(Notes 2 and 3)
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
ASSETS (Pesos) (Pesos)
Current Assets
Cash and banks (Note 4 and Schedule G) ....ccoeeiviivieieneceeirerieeere st 2,957,577 2,307,479
Investments {(SChEAUIE D) o.viiiii ettt st s ere et e et st s teste s eresieene . 2,708,239
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 5, 18 and 20 and Schedules E and G).................. 17.089,281 26,090,062
Other receivables (Notes 6, 18 and 20 and Schedule G) ...oovevreerieneeeiivncnniniinenne 2,261,652 4,148.215
Inventories, net (Note 7 and Schedules E ) ooveeevvvrivcriiiinnicicininineenriensenienne 2,873,111 3,448,920
Other assets (Note 8) 1,229,444 1,117,454
Total CUrrent ASSELS .........coveeemvurriereennreriieini et eatcaeincensesrssenesseses 26,411,065 39,820,369
Non-Current Assets
Accounts receivable, net (Notes S and 20 and Schedule E) ......... 1,147,602 816,063
Other receivables (Notes 6 and 20 and Schedules E and G) 28,456 5.896.953
Investments (Schedules € and D) .ovcvvevieiinrcrier e sasesenssiecieens 10,188,468 16,789,234
Property, plant and equipment, net (Schedules A and G)...ovovvervivveieniinnnncinias 49,487,533 53,852,798
Intangible assets, net (Schedule B) ..o 129,486,586 148,990,215
Other aSSEts (INOLE 8)....vevieuiirieeeriereimiereeeesiereemmcstcorereees sesiesesssenetesss st nesseesseans 1,438,514 2,018,893
Total Non-Current Assets... 191,777.159 228,364,156
TOTAL ASSETS......ooniiviiis s emesinisetesmnsbee s snsnereens 218,188.224 268,184,525
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (Notes 9, 18 and 20 and Schedule G) ..o 26,136,543 23,506,901
Short-term debt (Notes 10 and 20 and Schedule G) .evevverveevevimnreireceeeeeeceiere 16,057,233 13,291,924
Salaries and social security payable (Notes 11 and 20) . 4,936,937 1,823.997
Taxes payable (Notes 12 and 20) ... 2,731,817 3,210,945
Other liabilities (Notes 13,18 and 20 and Schedule G) ..cccooovviinccvniiiininnns 2,491,660 315,780
Total Current Liabilities 55.354,192 42,149,547
Non-Current Liabilities
Accounts payable (Notes 9 and 20 and Schedule G)..o.oovvevereicinncnicnincineeens 122.082 449,112
Long-term debt (Notes 10 and 20 and Schedule G) .. . 138,000,000 146,500,000
Other liabilities (Notes 13 and 20).......c.occoeverreremreiiie i esns 45,525 60,790
Provisions (Note 20 and Schedule E)...c..cccoooviviiiiniiiiinne s 1.439.724 1,274,321
Total Non-Current Liabilities . 139,607,331 148,284,223
TOTAL LIABILITIES ........oooooiioieieti et ceesssesieresvecn e sioenrensinens 194,961,523 190.433,770
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ...oooieeieriineinreeseesssnsasssssssssossesssnnesesessesensrassene 23,226,701 77,750,755
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ......... 218,188,224 268,184,525

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

See separate Auditor's report dated

March 8, 2002

PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.

by

(Partner)

C.PCECABA. T'1 F1RAPU.

Dr. Ruben O. Mosi
Public Accountant (U.B.A))

Marcelo Aubone
Vice - President

CP.CECAB.ATo. 68-Fo. 134
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

(Notes 2 and 3)
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos) 4

NEt SAIES (NOLE 14) .o.iuimemiiciirenioemrnin ettt sttt sttt et 131,613,684 136,699,936
Cost of sales (Schedule F). (71,003,171) (70,859,825)

Gross profit.. 60,610,513 65,840,111
Selling expenses (SChedule H)...coooiiiiciiicci e e st ae (45,606,727) (37,710,480)
General and Administrative expenses (Schedule H) ..ot ireecenenenes (31,621,322) (25,523,904)

Operating (10sS)/Profit ... (16,617,536) 2,605,727
Equity in loss from controlled companies (Note 19) ..o (1,035,339) (1,467,843)
Other expenses and income, Nt (NOLE 15)...c.o.ciireriieeiriereccrecreeiecen e csssasaesnsssassan s (3,152,699) (994,692)
Financial results, net (Note 16):

GENErated DY ASSEIS...ecreriimreerieriesieiencammrierenraestimecsaenesses rorerensreesasnsnsenecssennasnens 23,591 408,419

Generated by HabilItes ....c..crviicereeroniic i (22,069,474) (24,331,862)

Net loss before minimum notional income taxX ..............cccevrvrvivrecrnniniierenneenns (42,851,457) (23,780,251)
Minimum notional income tax (Schedule E).......cooovvivrii vt (4,657,942) -

OTAINATY 0SS ..c...vvceiritirccteta ettt et s e eaer e e esaesesesomesanaencn (47,509,399) (23,780,251)
Extraordinary Results (Note 24 and Schedules B and E) .....covveviicmeciinnciciniincnccceiiennes (10,659,930) -

Net 1085 Or the Year .........ccccvvrovieicriricinc e s (58,169,329) (23,780,251)

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

See separate Auditor's report dated

March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.
by (Partner)
CPCECABATIFIRAPU.
Dr. Ruben O. Mosi Marcelo Aubone
Public Accountant (U.B.A.) Vice - President

C.P.CE.CAB.ATo. 68-Fo. 134
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

CHANGES IN FUNDS

(Notes 2 and 3)

Funds at the beginning of the year
(Decrease)/Increase in funds

Funds at the end of the year

CAUSES OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
Net loss for the year

Plus: Items not entailing the use of funds
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Equity in loss from controlled companie

Net book value of other assets sold

Net book value of other assets decreases .......

Net book value of property, plant and equipment decreases

Net book value of property, plant and equipment sold

Amortization of intangible assets..

Accrued salaries and social secunty pendmg paymem

Indemnities pending payment

Increase in provision for lawsuits............

Increase in allowance for doubtful accounts

Minimum notional income tax

Accrued interest pending payment

Accrued tax on corporate indebtedness ...
Depreciation of other assets

Holding loss/(gain) on inventories

Interest receivable

Gain from the sale of propeny, plant and equipment in installments

her... e
Changes in asets and liabilities

Accounts payable
Accounts receivable

Other receivable
INVENLOTIES ..ooviericmeri et sttty

Other assets

Salaries and social security payable.

Taxes payable

Provision for lawsuits......ceceeeenn.

Other Habilities .....ovurmeirvnirserrenmsemie s s s nene

Toral of funds provided by operating activities
Funds (used in) provided by investing activities
Acqguisition of property, plant and equipment

Expenses on intangible asset

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Irrevocable contributions

Advances for the purchase of shares .

Toral of funds used in investing activities .........
Funds (used in) provided by financing activities
Increase in loans

Loans to companies under article 33 Law 19,550.

Irrevocable contributions

Seulement of loans

Total of funds (used in) provided by financing activities
(Decrease)/Increase in funds

The accompanying notes and schedules are an integral part of these financial statements.

Supplemental cash flows information

Non-cash financial activities

- Conversion of accounts receivable into irrevocable contributions

- Conversion of other receivables into irrevocable contributions

- Sale of other assets in installments

- Advances granted at 12.31,00 and at 12.31.01 applied to the purchase of subsidiaries......ccorveerrene.

- Debt for the acquisition of subsidiaries

- Sale of property, plant and equipment in instaliments

- Liabilities deducted from the purchase price of the subsidiary.

- Decrease in accounts receivable through additions of property, plant and equipment ...

See separate Auditor's report dated
March 8, 2002
PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.

by (Partner)
CPCECABA TIFIRAPU.
Dr. Ruben 0. Mosi

Public Accountant (U.B.A))
CP.C.EC.AB.ATo.68-Fo. 134
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December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
5,015.718 2,951,274
(2,058,141) 2.064,444
2.951.577 5.015.718

(58,169,329) (23,780,251)
8,787,802 8,430,754
1,035,339 1,467,843

11,572 91,772
200.100 -
22,987 6,664
55,572 656,913

31,672,967 16,369,029
2,023,497 908,870
1,613,215 204,988

388,051 270,667
4,805,760 629,953
4,657,942 -
7,066,019 7,291,924
319,451 1,099,221
113,602 77.464
304,127 (68.119)
- (109.817)
(74,183) -
85,824 4,882
2,392,695 55,679
2,841,640 (7,628,155)
3,006,291 (794.,860)
271,682 371,346
56,039 (363,526)
(523,772) (2,519,314)
(798.579) (1,095,143)
(222,648) (141,436)
(125.260) (193,150
11,818,403 1,244,198
(4,511.800) (4.794,019)
(2,061,225) (4.007,771)
(846.870) (1,128,532)
(310,000) -
- (3.290.153)
(7.729.895) (13.220,475)
- 33,500.000
- (569,647)
3,645,275 -
(9.791.924) (18,889.632)
(6.146.649) 14,040,721

(2,058,141) 2,064,444

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) {Pesos)
1,005,812 1,160,000

94,188 -

. 52,565
10,039,254 1,865,857
2,259,836 -
86,198 12,227
3,370,057 -
- 37,922

Marcelo Aubone
Vice - President




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
(Such statements were issued in local currency in accordance with
" Argentine generally accepted accounting standards)

Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial Position

Argentina is immersed in a difficult economic climate. The prevailing indicators during 2001 were a
significant public debt burden, high interest rates, decrease in savings amounts, country risk levels far above
normal average and a three-year economic recession. This situation has led to a significant decrease in products
and services consumption and an increase in the unemployment level. These circumstances have affected the-
Government’s ability to comply with existing commitments and access to bank financing.

As from December 3, 2001 restrictions on cash availability and circulation and the transfer of foreign
currency abroad have been imposed. On December 21, 2001 foreign exchange trading was suspended.
Subsequently, the Government declared default on external debt payments.

On January 6, 2002, after a political crisis that resulted in the resignation of two presidents, the
Government enacted Law N° 25561 (Ley de emergencia publica y reforma del régimen cambiario) that
involved significant changes to the prevailing economic policy and the amendment of the currency
convertibility Law in force since March 1991. On February 3, 2002 the Government announced new economic
measures that were implemented through Decree 214 (Restructuring of the financial system) dated February 3,
2002, Decree 260 (Exchange Regime) dated February 8§, 2002, and Decree 410 (Restructuring of the financial
system) dated March 1, 2002, that modified some of the measures included on Law N° 25561. These decrees
are being complemented with other regulations, some of which may have been pending at the date at issuance
of these financial statements.

Some of the measures taken by the Government, in force at the date of issuance of these financial statements,
and related effects on the Company’s financial position are described below.

Exchange system

On January 6, 2002 a dual currency system has been instituted. Certain transactions that qualify under
the Government regulations (basically imports and exports) would be at an official exchange (fixed) rate of $
1.4 per US$ 1. All other transactions would be at the free floating market exchange rate. On January 11, 2002,
Banco Nacién Argentina published its first free market rate at $ 1.6 per US$ 1 (ask) and $ 1.4 per US$ 1 (bid).

On February 8, 2002 the Government issued Decree 260 under which as from February 11, 2002 a
single free floating currency system was instituted. Banco Central de la Repiblica Argentina is entitled to
regulate currency system operations and should approve certain transfers of foreign currency abroad.

Bank deposits

Decree 214 state that, as from February 3, 2002 bank deposits denominated in U.S. dollars or other
foreign currencies will be converted to pesos at the exchange rate of § 1.4 per US$ 1 or its equivalent in such
other currency. Furthermore, there are restrictions on the availability of checking accounts and savings
accounts balances denominated in dollars and time deposits balances denominated in pesos or dollars, which
will be paid back in installments whose amounts and due dates depend on balances recorded. As from February
3, 2002 an adjusting index (CER) and an interest rate will be applied to these rescheduled deposits. In addition,
the owners of these deposits can elect to receive up to US$ 30,000 in Government bonds denominated in U.S.
dollars.
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial
Position (Continued):

Receivables and debts not related to the financial system

Accounts receivable and payable denominated in dollars or other foreign currency and
agreements between private entities that state prices or fees in dollars or other foreign currency were
converted to pesos at an exchange rate of $ 1 per US$ 1 or its equivalent in such other foreign currency.
An adjusting index (CER) is to be applied to these balances as from February 3, 2002. If goods or
services prices are higher or lower than amounts paid at corresponding due dates the parties can request a
price readjustment. If the parties involved do not reach an agreement, lawsuits or other legal action may
be initiated.

Income tax

Exchange losses recorded due to devaluation are deductible for income tax purposes over a five-
year period.

Valuation of foreign currency receivables and liabilities

In accordance with Resolution 1/02 of the Professional Council in Economic Sciences of the
Autonomous City of Buenos Aires and (Resolution No. 392 of the National Securities Commission)
(Resolution 2/02 of the Superintendence of Corporations), as of December 31, 2001 receivables and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were valued at the exchange rate of $ 1 per US$ 1 or its
equivalent in any other foreign currency.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company has recorded receivables and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies as follows: »

d) Checking accounts with Argentine Banks:

Currency Amount in foreign
currency
Assets
Cash and Banks US$ 7.258
Total 7,258

e) Receivables and liabilities with local customers and suppliers:

Currency Amount in foreign
currency

Current Assets
Other receivables USs 63,957
Non Current Assets
QOther receivables Uss 8,670
Advances to suppliers USs 583
Total 73,210
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable USs 1,241,541
Other liabilides Uss 2,259,836
Total 3,501,377
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Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial
Position (Continued):

f) Deposits and debts with foreign banks. Receivables and liabilities with foreign customers and

suppliers:
Currency Amount in foreign
currency
Current Assets
Cash and Banks Uss 34,692
Trade Accounts Receivable US$ 1,833,494
Other Receivables US$ 8,614
Non current Assets
Advances to suppliers USs 99,000
Total 1,975,800
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable US$ 298,144
Loans Uss 19,057,233
Non current liabilities
Loans USs 138,000,000
Total 157,355,377

The measures adopted by the Government, detailed in preceding paragraphs, applying exchange
rates prevailing at february 28, 2002 of $ 2.05 / 2.15 per USS$ 1 — ask/bid rates — will have an estimated
impact on the Company’s financial position as of December 31, 2001, of $ 178,880,133 (exchange loss).
The effects of devaluation, together with other measures adopted, will be recorded in subsequent period’s
financial statements.

The Company is taking a variety of actions as a result of the present recession and to attempt to
limit the negative impact on ongoing operations.

The impact generated by measures adopted to date by the Government on the financial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2001 was calculated on the basis of management present assessments.
Actual results could differ from current management assessments and such differences could be material.
Therefore, the Company’s financial statements may not include all adjustments that might ultimately result
from these adverse conditions. Future economic developments and related effects on the Company’s
financial position cannot presently be determined. Therefore, any decision taken on the basis of these
financial statements must consider the effects of these measures and their future development and the
Company’s financial statements should be read under the light of circumstances herein described.

The Company is highly leveraged. As of December 31, 2001, the Company's total indebtedness
was $ 157,057,233, including U.S. dollar denominated debt payable to entities abroad of US$ 30,432,233,
and foreign debt to bonds holders of US$ 126,625,000 (including capital and interest at the end of the
year). The Company 's debt service obligations in 2002 amount to US$ 19,057,233.

The Company incurred net loss of $ 58,169,329 in the year ended 2001. In addition, the Company
generated working capital deficit of $ 28,943,127 and has an accumulated deficit of $ 118,743,367 as of
December 31, 2001. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. The Company has begun a process to address its highly leveraged capital structure. and
expects to be able to reschedule its short and long-term financial debt. While the Company believes that
there are certain aliernatives available, there can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in
implementing any such alternatives or that any such alternatives, if implemented, will enable the Company
to meet its obligations.
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Note 1: Argentine Economic situation and its impact on the Company’s Economic and Financial
Position (Continued):

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going
concern.  Therefore, these financial statements do not included any adjustments relating to the
recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities
that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern, requiring it to
realize its assets and settle its liabilities, including contingent liabilities, in conditions other than those of
the normal course of its business.

The Company’s continuation as a going concern is dependent upon its ability to generate
sufficient cash flows to meet its obligations on a timely basis, to obtain additional financing as may be
required and/or the restructuring of its liabilities, as well as being dependent on a recovery in demand in the
short term in order to reverse the loss situation mentioned above, and also on the Company’s ability to
absorb amortization of goodwill, depreciation of fixed assets, as well as to generate the necessary cash
flows to continue the normal course of business.

Note 2: Financial Statement Presentation
As required by General Resolution No. 368/01 of the Comisién Nacional de Valores (“CNV™), the
financial statements herein have been prepared pursuant to and following the manner established by the

valuation and disclosure standards set forth by Technical Resolutions Nos. 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 12 and 13 of the
Argentine Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2000 are presented for purposes of comparison, as
required under professional accounting standards. In order to present that information in a manner
consistent with the financial information for the current period, the financial statements originally issued as
of the earlier date have been subjected to some reclassifications.

Note 3: Accounting Principles

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company in the
preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been applied consistently with those of the
previous year:

a. Local currency assets and liabilities

The local currency assets and liabilities have been stated at their face value, including, if
applicable, accrued interest at the end of the year.

b. Foreign currency assets and liabilities

Foreign currency assets and liabilities were translated at the exchange rate prevailing on the
balance sheet date, including, if applicable, accrued interest at the end of the year.

c. Investments

Current:

- Time deposits are valued at cost, plus accrued interest at the end of the year.

- Mutual funds disclosed at their quotation value at the end of the year.
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Note 3: Accounting Principles (Continued)
Non-current:
- Equity investments in controlled companies:

Equity investments in controlled companies have been accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, based on their respective financial statements as of December 31,
2001, in accordance with the guidelines of Technical Resolutions N° 5 of the Argentine
Federation of Professional Councils in Economic Sciences.

The Company presents consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2001 together
with those of Panificacién Argentina S.A.L.C., Enicor S.A., Capital Foods S.A., Fresh
Food S.A. and Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de Argentina S.A. as
supplementary information.

- Investments in other companies - Advances on account of future share purchases:

The advances recorded under this caption are stated at their face value at the end of the
year.

- Properties:

The real estate properties are stated at their fair market value as of October 31, 1997,
based on an appraisal performed by independent professionals, less accumulated
depreciation, calculated under the straight-line method over an estimated useful life of 50
years.

d. Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at estimated realizable values, net of the allowance for doubtful
accounts which is considered by management to be sufficient to meet any future losses related to
uncollectible amounts.

e. Inventories

Inventories are stated at replacement cost and/or production cost at the end of the period, which
does not exceed their recoverable values.

f. Properry, plant and equipment
Properties:

The real estate properties are stated at their fair market value as of October 31, 1997,
based on an appraisal performed by independent professionals. The building
improvements occurred after such date, have been valued at their historical cost.

Other:

The additions occurred up to August 31, 1995, are recorded at cost, adjusted for the
cumulative inflation from the date of acquisition until August 31, 1995. Additions after
August 31, 1995 are stated at their historical cost.

In the case of certain fixed assets other than buildings where appraisals were performed
prior to the acquisition, the appraised value adjusted for inflation as of August 31, 1995,
less accumulated depreciation as of October 31, 1997, was used as the fair value
recorded at acquisition date by the Company.
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Note 3: Accounting Principles (Continued)

The software line includes the costs that were necessary to implement an integrated
SAP R/3 administrative-accounting and management control system, These charges are

being amortized following the straight-line method over five years as from the start-up
date.

The values of the fixed assets thus determined are disclosed net of the corresponding accumulated
depreciation, calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets,
which are specified below:

Assets Years
BUIAINES ..ot ettt et s i s 50
Buildings iMPIOVEMENTS ........uirveiricininreentiieries e ses s erses s seesae e seassesssnsanesessenes 10

Machinery and eQUIPIMENL...........ccouimiriricreinre e bbbt e 10
FaCIIES. ...ttt e et 10
COMPULET NATAWATE ... cv.eecveirieeeieciei et ses et sttt aene b neeee 5
SOFIWATE ..ottt ettt res s see bt ae e s es b bt bas a8 ettt s e s b s st seesennes sbasseens 5
Furniture and FIXTUIE ...o.coiiiii it css et ss e ecsians 10
VERICIES ..ottt e 5
Molds, plastic trays, containers, platforms and Cases ..........ocvceernieerecnerinernecne conunnes 5

SPAIE PAITS 1.cviivirecisiinsis e siesscrereser e ree st essae et ebs et s emet bt bbb esemeassme e s asetmaa et nt o tnses 10
The values of the fixed assets, taken as a whole, do not exceed their recoverable value.
8. Inrangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price for the companies’ shares acquired over the
fair value of their net assets.

Such values arose from the Company’s (direct and indirect) purchase of shares in Fargo S.A.,
Pemsa S.A., Panificacion Argentina S.A.I.C., Panino S.A., Enicor S.A., Gouguenheim S.A., Distribuidora
Argentina de Comestibles S.A.I.C.F.A., Compaiifa Fegopre de Valores Mobiliarios y Garantia S.A.,
Fluxinvest S.A., Capital Foods S.A. , Fresh Food S.A. and Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos
Sacaan de Argentina S.A. )

The aforementioned goodwill values are amortized following the straight-line method over a
twenty-year period, counted as from the month following that of their capitalization.

The Company makes regular (annual) evaluations of the recoverability of the initial investment
based on updated projections. As a result of the evaluations made during the fiscal years 2001 and 2000,
the Company decided to reduce the value of the initial investment by Ps. 10,130,000 and 5,059,800,
respectively.

Other intangible assets:

« Financing fees and expenses related to bank loan: Represent expenses and fees
incurred in relation to the “Bridge Loan” obtained by the Company to issue the
negotiable bonds mentioned in Note 23.a. These expenses were fully amortized
following the straight-line method over term set for repaying the Ioan.

Furthermore, this line also includes the expenses incurred by the “Senior Secured
Revolving Credit Agreement” settled on July 27, 2000, as well as those
corresponding to the “Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement”
mentioned in Note 23.b.. These charges are stated at cost and are being amortized
on a straight-line method over the life of the related loans.
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Note 3: Accounting Principles (Continued)

* Expenses related to negotiable bonds: They correspond to costs and fees incurred in
relation to the issuance and registration of negotiable bonds on July 27, 1998 and March
30, 1999. These charges are stated at cost and are amortized following the straight-line
method, over the same term of the aforementioned financing (See Note 23.a.).

* Reorganization and development of new projects expenses: They correspond to
expenses incurred by the Company regarding its reorganization (purchase of the
Company’s shares and the merger process). These expenses are stated at cost and
were fully amortized following the straight-line method over a three-year period
beginning July 1, 1998. In addition, this line includes expenses relating to new
projects, which were fully amortized following the straight line method from their
implementation.

h. Other assets

- Spare parts:

They are valued at their acquisition cost.
- Inactive Assets:

Assets (mainly machinery) that have been reclassified from Fixed Assets, as they have been
withdrawn from use. These assets are valued at their acquisition cost, net of their applicable
accumulated depreciation, calculated following the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful life of the assets.

- Assets delivered under a loan for use agreement:

They are valued at their acquisition cost, net of their accumulated depreciation calculated under
the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of the assets.

- Promotional Materials:

Promotional materials are used by the Company to promote and increase the knowledge of the
trademark. These assets are valued at their acquisition cost.

The value of other assets, taken as a whole, does not exceed their recoverable value.

i. Provisions for litigation, contingencies and allowances
- Deducted from assets:

The Company booked a bad debt atllowance based on the estimated uncollectibility risk and set up
an inventory valuation allowance, corresponding to the difference between cost and realizable
values.

- Included under liabilities:

The Company is involved in legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising from the ordinary
course of business. Provisions have been established to cover losses on litigation matters and other
probable contingencies and for which amounts can be reasonably determined, based on the
Company lawyer's report.
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Note 3: Accounting Principles (Continued)

J- Income tax and tax on minimum notional income ("Impuesto a la Ganancia Minima Presunta”)

As a result of the accumulated tax loss carryforwards, the Company did not recognize an income
tax provision at the end of the fiscal year.

Law No. 25,063 enacted a tax on minimum notional income for ten fiscal years. This tax is
supplementary to income tax, as while the latter is levied on the taxable net income for the year, the former
is levied on the potential income from certain assets at a rate of 1%, and the Company must pay the higher
of these two taxes.

Any excess of the tax on minimum notional income over and above income tax in a given fiscal
year may be computed as a payment on account of the income tax to artse in the next ten fiscal years, as
established by Law No. 25,360 published in the Official Bulletin dated December 12, 2000, thus amending
the original term initially set at four fiscal years.

The tax on minimum notional income corresponding to the current fiscal year was considered as a
non-current receivable, as shown in Note 6.

The Company periodically evaluates the recoverability of this tax based on updated projections;
therefore Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. and Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de
Argentina S.A. have covered their accumulated tax at December 31, 2001 with an allowance, because they
have determined that the possibility of offsetting it with income tax to be generated in the terms mentioned
above is uncertain.

k. Results for the year

Profit and loss items are shown in the currency values of the period to which they correspond,
except for the charges for assets consumed (fixed asset and other assets depreciation and intangible asset
amortization), which were determined based on the values of such assets.

Financial gains/(losses) are shown separately, depending on whether they are generated by assets
or liabilities.

l. Statement of cash flows

For purposes of presentation of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents as well as
banks and readily realizable investments are treated as cash. The Company follows the indirect method,
which calls for a series of adjustments to the results of the period in order to arrive at the funds generated
by operations or used for them.

m. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assessments
which affect the amounts of contingent assets and liabilities disclosed at the date of these financial
statements, as well as the income and expenses recorded during the year. The Company’s management
makes estimates to calculate, for example, the allowance for doubtful accounts, depreciation and
amortization charges, the recoverable value of assets, the valuation allowance for inventories and for
investments made on account of future acquisitions of shares, the provision for contingencies and taxes.
However, the actual future results may differ from the estimates and assessments made at the date of these
financial statements.
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Note 4: Cash and banks

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Cash (Schedule G).. 445,135 671,111
Petty cash ............... 2,597 35,939
Banks in 10Cal CUITENCY .....cviieieiiccii e nibcr et senses e sse e sncans 2,467,895 1,402,070
Banks in foreign currency (Schedule G) ..o 41,950 198,359
2,957,577 2,307,479
Note S: Accounts receivable, net
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
: December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
{Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Trade accounts receivable (Schedule G)....covvvcriiriienerencrinieeie s 19,685,823 24,372,117
Companies under article 33 Law 19,550 (Note 18 and Schedule G).................. 1,906,767 1,887,331
INOLES TECEIVADIE ...ttt v et e s sansts s tnetesessae s s tsennae 484,974 338,333
Less:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Schedule E).....occovivvvviiiiieiciiercis e (4,988,283) (507,719)
17,089,281 26,090,062
Non-Current
INOLES TECEIVADIE L..eviirenr ettt et e nae s ere e 408,782 123,644
Debtors under legal proceedings.........cce.evveverreerierierinicrsicereesraenies e sseeeenees 2,610,951 2,350,890
Less:
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Schedule E).....coovevvviiviiiviiiniiereiinncciccreenee. (1,872,131) (1,658,471
1,147,602 816,063
Note 6: Other receivables .
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Companies under article 33 Law 19,550 (Note 18 and Schedule G).................. 195,807 1,472,469
Tax credits and Withholdings .......cccvvrriverereeec s e 924,529 1,124,437
Advances to suppliers (Schedule G) ... 351,084 520,347
Prepaid insurance (SChedule G).......ovovvvirii i 6,772 33,604
AdVances t0 EMPIOYEES .....covvvviiremitene ettt sas s seees 61,126 142,889
Prepaid expenses (Schedule G).....cococcvinviiiniiicc e 23,527 198,867
Prepaid advertising eXPenses ........ccovrinieiieinissr e - 67,504
Receivables from legal proceedings ............coeovviievivnninieinniniccs 90,643 90,643
Other (SChedule G)....ocvvveeciremnre et e ncare s s ensee e nes 608,164 497,455
2,261,652 4,148,215
Non-Current
ASSEUAX CTEAIT...eev i everrieeerrseeeenrreerees e senetesaareers e nsenestneirtessnssaeseereeterenianan 4,657,942 5,827,077
Allowance of asset tax credit (Schedule E)..oooovvveveiiive e (4,657,942) -
Other (Schedule Gl e 28,456 69,876
28.456 5,896,953
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Note 7: Inventories, net

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
{Pesos) (Pesos)
GOOdS fOT TESALE........cvimrierier ettt st et 223,612 262,725
FiniShed BO0US.......c.cccvcriiieecniinct e s ebses bbb eneanee 457,869 378,358
WOTK 11 PIOCESS ..cvotncirinrene s it seeaa et eas bbb bbb 142,391 214,516
Raw materials and packaging materials ........cccovicererriniininnrcnenieneesreneneens 2,049,076 2,578,591
Subtotal (SChedUIE F) .....ooeerieicriiiei vt se et bt st e rsbsaneee e eseneans 2,872,948 3,434,190
AAVANCES 10 SUPPLEIS . ....cviiviititiire e et ess s s eeb e s 163 69,607
Less:
Valuarion allowance of inventories (Schedule E).ovovvvvivcivnveeein i, - (54,877)
2,873,111 3,448,920
Note 8: Other assets
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
SPATE DATES .ovecserarenresnsecerrnressesees s saesiessemneasesuasiasassssssesiosessensstsensessiseisnres 1,037,053 862,682
Promotional MATEHAL........c.ccuermmtimnerinicritsens e rersessserssis s e 123918 227,610
ORE....viereeserecraercsecrsisaes et ee s es s s s becr s ereasbta s ssameen b aeaes e srees 68,473 27,162
1,229,444 1,117,454
Non-Current
SPATE PATIS voreveveiiiie vt sarie s et s st etesesasea st 812,503 1,092,901
INACTIVE ASSEIS ...vuvveecrerercsieiercriesres s s sae st e s n b 343,136 634,633
ASSELS deliVEred ON LOAM ..ooviiiiiiiiiceieee e ceeeie ettt ssbec e ereetn et aeresesnsansaesne 282,875 291,359
1,438,514 2,018,893
Note 9: Accounts payable
The breakdown of this caption 1s as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Local suppliers (Schedule G) ......ccovirnmiecrimiiniistinem et rens 20,613,846 18,626,128
Foreign suppliers (Schedule G)..oocvvvviiciimieiciccc s 298,144 216,831
Companies under article 33 Law 19,550 (Note 18)....c..ococrirvuivimineiinninniens 2,318,048 1,209,145
Unbilled by suppliers{ Schedule G) ....o.coveive i 2,906,507 3,454,797
26,136,545 23,506,901
Non-Current
Local Suppliers (SChedule G ..ot csersceecsscncencns 122,082 449,112
122,082 449,112
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Note 10: Short-term and long-term debt

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Short-term debt
Uncollateralized bank debt - Principal amount (Schedule G) ........cc.cevueeen. - 2,500,000
Collateralized bank debt — Principal amount (1) (Schedule G).....cc.ococeveen.e. 12,000,000 3,500,000
Collateralized bank debt-Accrued interest (1) (Schedule G)....oovevvevevevrivvenns 7,057,233 7,273,125
Uncollateralized bank debt-Accrued interest (Schedule G) ...ovovevvvvviivveenin, - 18,799
19,057,233 13,291,924
Long-term debt
Negotiable bonds-Principal amount (1) (Schedule G) ..oovvvevrevcvvreirisrenrienn. 120,000,000 120,000,000
Collateralized bank debt — Principal amount (1) (Schedule G)..................... 18,000,000 26,500,000
138,000,000 146,500,000

(1) Details on issuance of negotiable bonds and of the Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement are
mentioned in Note 23 to the unconsolidated financial statements.

Note 11: Salaries and social security payable

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Salaries payable.... ..o e 1,228,643 10,882
$0CIal SECULTY PAYADIE .....vvvvvcvvcos e essemsesvesssersesses s sssssssenessessssreseenesins e 794,854 897,988
Accrual for vacation and Other ..ot 1,300,225 710,139
Indemnities to personnel (Note 31) .....cocooimiiiiinni s 1,613,215 204,988
4,936,937 1,823,997
Note 12:  Taxes payable
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Minimum notional income tax provision, REt .........ccrmicriimeicinrieninne - 778,004
Tax on corporate INAebIEANESS ......cvveeucvevrrrercrreircericee i s 319,451 1,099,221
VAT payable, NEL...ccuevveuiimeerieiriirnencscoininensvsscartessasissonssississsssrsssassnssnressins 1,934,097 855,464
VAT WithhoIdings ...ccovviiriiieiiineieiiiin it 117,868 157,395
Income tax WithhOIAINGS .......ccovereuiieiciiinriree e e 109,164 111,834
Turnover tax payable, NEt ... 26,255 35,947
Turnover tax Withholdings ..o 78,735 91,436
(8157 S SO ST SR OO TP PR OT PSSR OPPTO O 146,247 81,534
2,731,817 . 3,210,945
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Note 13:  Other liabilities
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Guarantee deposits received from CUSIOMETS ........coccreinriniieeieieneecenan, 184,731 290,387
Debt for the acquisition of subsidiaries (Schedule G) ....covvivrireririvervennnin 2,259,836 -
Companies under article 33 Law 19,550 (Note 18).....cccccvrreeviereriniennnan. 41,700 -
Indemnity agreements Payable ... cocrcrecrermieeeenanecrcrnanescronns 3,600 23,600
ONET ...ttt bbb 1,793 1,793
2,491,660 315,780
Non-Current
Guarantee deposits received from customers ................. [EPRTTRRTROIRR 4,625 16,290
Indemnity agreements payable ... 37,800 41,400
Other ...t e st 3,100 3,100
45,525 60,790
Note 14: Net sales
The breakdown of this caption is as follows:
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain / (loss)
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Sales of bakery products (1) (Note 18)......coriiinrniiiciiees 130,057,634 135,894,135
Sales of subproducts and Other (1) ....cooovveiecvereriiernniie i esns 1,979,931 1,401,090
EXports reimbursements (2) .o...ccvcooiriinimricisisieasirs s s 185,933 -
Less:
SA1ES TUIMIOVET LAX vvveeiviivereiiveieeeasonseserensnssssstreseessssneimsnssssossssnsseassssansssuesees (609,814) (595,289)
131,613,684 136,699,936

(1) Net sales are adjusted for discounts and returns, if applicable.

(2) Correspond to the percentage to the percentage of the FOB value of expors, which was established through a
Convergence Factor provided by Resolution No. 803/2001 of the Ministry of Economy and Public Works and
Utilities, published in the Official Gazette on June 18, 2001, which regulates a temporary regime to foster exports.
Furthermore, that line includes exports reimbursements, which under Resolution No. 220/2001, were reinstated for
goods exported to Mercosur country members.
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Note 15: Other expenses and income, net

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain/ (loss)
(Pesos) (Pesos)
RECOVETY Of EXPRIISES ...ttt st ettt st eane s 314,180 "t 154,978
Gain from the sale of property, plant and eqUIPMEDL........cocoerrinrvrveriririnnnns 174,580 451,080
Indemnities to personnel.................. (2,409,889) (1,266,417)
Net gain/(10ss) on Milling SEIVICES ....coovrrrvrmrerererrrenrescenvsrsssimssesisserssssseesessens (453,527) (13,137)
Oher (1) e et cb st e (778.043) (321,196)
(3,152,699) (994,692)

(1} At December 31, 2001, the net book value of Ps. 193,450 of other unusable assets written off has been included.

Note 16: Financial results, net

The breakdown of this caption is as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Gain/ (loss) Gain/ (loss)
(Pesos) (Pesos)
Generated by assets:
Interest Income (NOLE 18) .oovvovviriieeceiiece et mvte e v s sete s eeeaerens 258,511 293,248
Exchange Gifference.......ccoeienonincn s ecrrcnconessseseccesnsnesseesinen (4,979) 1,165
Holding (loss)/ gain on inventories and Others .........ccccverireeirecrensinrinnnns (229,941) 114,006
23591 408419
Generated by liabilities: .
INTEIESE EXPEMSE ..ovvvereriirereisiscciisrrcrsstree s st sre e msas s s er s e b s e s (19,441,407) (19,295,777)
Exchange difference ...t s s (4,334) 56,215
Amortization of bank charges and loans expenses (Schedule B).................... (582,615) (735,779)
Amortization of expenses on issuance and registration of negotiable bonds
(Schedule B) (769,188) (769,201)
Tax on corporate indebtedness .........cccvcviiiiiiveiinn s (923,137) (2,999,541)
OTNET ettt et r s s e e s b e st ar s e (348,793) (587,779)
(22,069.474) (24,331,862)
Net financial TESUIS......ccoorvcmrrieinicriinecrineccriir et (22,045,883) (23,923,443)
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Note 17: Common stock

As of December 31, 2001, the Capital status was as follows:

Date of Registration
with the Public
Capital (Pesos) Date Body Registry of Commerce
Subscribed, issued Initial Meeting to
and paid up 12,000  December 22, 1997 establish the Corporation  October 3, 1997
Ordinary and
Subscribed, issued Extraordinary
and paid up 95,048,000  October 30, 1997 Shareholders” Meeting ~ March 27, 1998
Ordinary and
Subscribed, issued Extraordinary
and paid up 28,951,980  May 29, 1998 Shareholders’ Meeting  July 20, 1998
Subscribed, issued Extraordinary
and paid up 10 June 1, 1998 Shareholders’ Meeting  January 20, 1999
124,011,990

As of December 31, 2001, the common stock of the Company consisted of 12,401,199 ordinary,
registered, non-endorsable shares with a face value of Ps.10 each and with one vote each.

On March 30, 2001, Global Foods Co., holding 12,401,198 shares and 63% of another share,
transferred in favor of Fargo Holding (Gibraltar), a company organized under the laws of
Gibraltar and controlled by the former, all the capital stock held by it in that Company.

On July 27, 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an irrevocable capital
contribution on account of future share subscriptions for US$ 3,645,275, made on that date by
Fargo Holding (Gibraltar), which is the Company’s majority shareholder.

Currently the abovementioned shares, owned by Fargo Holding (Gibraltar), representing
99.999997% of the Company’s capital stock, are pledged as follows:

- Senior pledge on 85.079% and second degree pledge on 14.92%, according to a loan
agreement entered into by the Company, as mentioned in Note 23.b.
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Note 18: Companies under Article 33 Law 19,550

The balances and operations with companies under art. 33 Law 19,550 as of December 31, 2001
and 2000 and for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

ASSETS
Accounts receivable
ENICOT S.A. ittt et en s s vt et a st 1,665,768 1,864,529
Panificacién Argentina S.ALC. oo 229,929 -
Capital FOodSs S.A ... vt e 11,070 22,802
Other receivables
Global FOOAS €0, (1) .rcuuririimninrinioreiecieeiresesisessssscteaseseesserane e - 1,283,974
Capital Foods S.A.....cccocovvinrnninnn. . 188,884 169,142
Panificacion Argentina SALC. . v 6,923 6,923
ENICOr S.A . oo erses e e st bbbt sareas - 12,430
Total assets 2,102,574 3,359,800
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Panificacién Argentina S.ALC. i 2,257,548 1,049,042
Capital Foods S.A. . 38,720 160,103
Fresh FOOA S.A. ...ooiiiiiireceeeete et ssssssasee e s eb v s nees 21,780 -
Other liabilities
Fresh FOOA S.A. oot ben et sae e 41,700
Total liabilities 2,359,748 1,209,145

(1) Controlling company of the majority shareholder of Compaiiia de Alimentos Fargo S.A..
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Note 18: Companies under Article 33 Law 19,550 (Continued)

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

OPERATIONS
Net sales ) 4,764,500 4,901,415
ENICOT S A oottt st 2,593,995 3,013,373
Panificacion Argentina S.A.LC. oo 50,193 18,486
Capital Foods S.A.......cccvrnnnn, . 23,011 -
Fresh FOOd S.A. oot
Interest from loans
Global Foods Co. (1). e sinscsenresneaiasesnsssssae 70,195 103,356
Capital FOods S.A ..o eenss s enens e sae s 1,948 6,461
Other
Panificacién Argentina S.A.LC.

Technical advisory services 60,000 60,000

Maintenance and preservation services of property, plant and

EQUIPITIEIT ...votrrececenrianscriaaesressnsensesseeissssossnsssssnsasesssmssansasesnres 182,400 182,400
Enicor S.A.

(Loss)/gain from the sale of other assets.......ooecveerivveeiriievennnnn. (6,290) 13,165
Total INCOIME ...ttt eaenes 7,739,952 8,298,656
Cost of sales
Fresh FOOd S.A. ittt b s en et sen e st e 29,117 -
Capital Foods S.A.......coooei - 36,766
Cost of services received
Panificacion Argentina S.ALC. i 5,622,840 5737972
Capital FOOAS S.A...iiiorirrncrireereeseresstssessesessssssissss s ssss s s srs 220,873 62,987
Commissions paid
Panificacién Argentina S.ALC. ..o 182,694 132,517
Capital FOOS S.A....coviiiiereaierciereiicieriescarcsacsssnemssasecriesssssnsinsenss 356,611 32,563
Fresh Food S.A et et 103,915 -
Leases
FIesh FOOQ S.A .o ouiirriieiiieiieeicircesasccrvnsacscaeiss ot eaassasscrsassesconansen 4,000 -

Total EXPEISES.........cviveericriicrni ettt 6,520,050 6,002,805

(1) Controlling Company of the majority shareholder of Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A..

Note 19: Equity in loss from controlled companies (Art. 33 Law N° 19,550)

Equity in loss of controlled companies (Art. 33 Law N° 19,550) for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

Panificacién
Argentina Capital Foods Fresh Food December 31, December 31,
S.AILC. S.A. Enicor S.A. S.A. 2001 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesas) (Pesos) (1) (Pesos)
Gain / (L0SS).....cc..... 290,684 (75,676) (1,097,841) (152,506) (1,035,339) (1,467,843)

(1) Minority interests (See Schedule C) in the results and net worth of the companies controlled by the Company amount to $ (4) and
$ (1), respectively, which as they are immaterial are not disclosed in the Company’s consolidated financial statements,
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Note 20: Additional information on assets and liabilities

The breakdown of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 is as follows:

Accounts Other
receivable receivables Total

ASSETS (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)

To mature

1% QUATTET 2002...e i eresecr e e sess bt sensssbs s e e 12,825.225 763,384 13,588,609

2 QUATEEE 2002.ncvrs vt s 161,716 972,423 1,134,136

3" quarter 2002 ... 95,534 15,910 111,444

4% QUAITET 2002 econvsreressmnneeesssnesssenesiss s 73,457 28,542 101,999

MOTE than ONE YEAT........ccovimimeiiiitineesinscvise s ev s e veassnes 1,147,602 28,456 1.176.058

SUBEOLAL .. ecveveeasssesr e cessns st st sns s reen 14,303,534 1,808,715 16,112,249

NO FIXEA EEIM . ....oveevecv e renrrerveree e enrie e snsee s e crtraebsmssns s anas 71,394 357,667 429,061

PaStAUE oo s 3,861,955 123,726 3,985,681

TOMAY ....oovvecan e emissses e s se st s sssssses 18,236,883 2,290,108 20,526,991

Not acCruing interest .................. 17,578,871 2,290,108 19,868,979

AL A FIXEA TRIE .oveever s eeseseseecener e s st sness e nrs o rarevassnenee 658.012 N 658,012

TOAL ..o vcsresassasseeree s esssassssts st ssassssse et 18,236,883 2,290,108 20,526,991

(1) Shown net of the allowance for doubtful accounts,
Salaries and
social
Accounts  Short-term and  security Taxes Other
payable long-term debt payable payabie liabilities Provisions Total

LIABILITIES (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
To mature

1% quarter 2002......cvvumevmnrmssevmnsmermscssssensessssess 19,301,021 7,057,233 3,026,942 1,762,409 69,045 - 31,216,650

2 quarter 2002. 1.082,392 4,000,000 482,397 713,398 30,672 - 6,308,859

3" quarter 2002.. 128,192 - 121,213 168,923 24.900 - 443,228

4% QUATERT 2002 coovunsrieeenrens s 9,765 4,500,000 2.467 . 24.900 . 4537132
More than One Year..........occvcrvcrmemmrssssrsssscserenes 122,082 138,000,000 - - 45,525 1,439,724 139,607,331
SUBLOLAL oo 20,643,452 153,557,233 3.633.019 2,644,730 195042 1430724 182,113,200
No fixed term - 1,303,918 - 168,350 - 1,472,268
PASTAUE ..vvoreierice e e e e e eranees 5‘615‘]75 3500;000 - 87‘087 2‘173'793 - 1 1‘376'()55
TOtALc.oo i 26,258,627 157.057.233  __ 4.936.937 2731817 2537185 1439724 194.961,523
NOE ACCTUING INEIESE..ooovvvirioeicsreriiiesreiescrcs 25,660,381 7,057,233 4,592,601 717,659 2,537,185 - 40,574,059
Ata fixed fate (1) 589,246 120,000,000 344,336 2,014,158 - 1439724 124,387,464
Ata variable 1ate (2) ... R 30,000.000 . . . . 30,000,000
TOBL oot e 26,258,627 157.057.233  __ 4.936.937 2731817 _ 2.537.185  1.439.724 194,961,523

(1)  Negotiable bonds accrue interest at an annual rate of 13.25%.

@

The loan agreement called *Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement” accrues an annual interest rate of 8.25%.
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Note 21: Assets collateralizing debt

Further to the information provided in Note 17 in connection with the new loan agreement
referred to in Note 23.b, the Company has granted new security in favour of Bankers Trust Company,
instead of the earlier security granted to it, as follows:

- Pledge on subsidiaries’ shares: senior pledge on the Company’s equity interests in its
controlled companies Panificacion Argentina S.A.I.C., Capital Foods S.A. and Enicor S.A..

To comply with the provisions of the loan agreement, on May 24, 2001, a senior pledge
was set up on Fresh Food S.A.’s shares that had been acquired by the Company (Note 28).

- Pledge on trademarks: senior pledge with conveyance on certain trademarks owned by the
Company, as well as of its controlled companies Panificacién Argentina S.A.I.C. and Capital Foods S.A.,
for up to US$ 30 million.

- Pledge on Machinery and Mortgages: senior pledges and mortgages with conveyance on

certain machinery and properties owned by the Company and its controlled company Panificacién
Argentina S.A.I.C. for up to US$ 30 million in each case.

As of December 31, 2001, the breakdown of assets subject to a security interest is as follows:

Institution that Amount owed at Type of
Description Book value grants the loan 12.31.01 guarantee
Properties 13,440,576  Bankers Trust Company (2) 30,432,233 Mortgage (3)
Machinery 9,612,863  Bankers Trust Company (2) 30,432,233 Pledge 3)
Trademarks 1) - Bankers Trust Company (2) 30,432,233 Pledge 3)

(1) As of December 31, 2001 they were fully amortized.
(2) This relates to the new loan agreement for USS$ 30 million, plus interest accrued at the end of the year (Note 23.b.).
(3) The principal secured is for up to USS 30 million for each type of collateral.

Note 22: Guarantees received

a. In connection with the Share Purchase and Sale Agreements for shares of Fargo S.A. and its
affiliated companies, dated August 21, 1997 and December 19, 1997, signed between The
Exxel Group S.A. or the affiliates it designated (“the purchaser”) and Messrs. Carlos F.
Preiti, Vicente Sergio Ferndndez, Nélida Beatriz Piva and Jaques Gouguenheim (*the
sellers™), the latter granted a senior pledge in favor of the purchaser covering time certificates
of deposit for US$ 9,000,000 for a maximum term of twenty-four months to indemnify the
purchaser for any cost resulting from any breach of such agreements, if the total amount of
such costs were to exceed a minimum amount of US$ 1,300,000 and US$ 500,000,
respectively.

As the above-mentioned time limit expired on June 20, July 4 and October 3, 2000, Global
Foods Co. authorized the escrow banks to release the guarantees in favor of the sellers, on the
understanding that these claims are due, in some cases, to the normal course of business and
that their costs were to be assumed by the Company. At the date of these financial
statements, the amount guaranteed had been reduced to US$ 200,000.
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Note 22: Guarantees received (Continued)

b. On December 21, 2000, Compafifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. and the former shareholders of
Capital Foods S.A. signed an agreement, under which the latter guarantee possible payments,
if the Company and its subsidiary were to pay the amounts resulting from certain legal claims
started before the transfer of shares performed on March 8, 2000. The guarantee was set up
by signing a promissory note for US$ 145,000 and a time deposit of US$ 75,000, which at its
due date was deposited in a savings account open for that purpose in the name of the Notary
Public involved.

Note 23: Status of the Financial Debt (Negotiable Bonds and Loan Agreement)

a. On July 27, 1998, the Company issued non-convertible negotiable bonds pursuant to Law
No. 23,576 and amendments for a total amount of US$ 120 million, the principal of which
will be redeemed on August 1, 2008. The negotiable bonds accrue interest at a rate of 13
1/4% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on August 1 and February 1 of each year,
commencing on February 1, 1999.

As a result of this issuance of negotiable bonds, Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A.
undertakes, the following obligations, among others:

- Certain restrictions on the distribution of dividends;

- Certain restrictions and limitations on indebtedness by the Company and its subsidiaries
and -

- Certain restrictions on capital investments made by the Company and its related
companies.

The Company used the proceeds from the issuance of the negotiable bonds mainly for the
settlement of the liability related to the Senior Loan known as the "Senior Secured Bridge
Loan Agreement" with BT Alex. Brown Incorporated, acting as arranger, Bankers Trust
Company, acting as agent bank and other banks as lenders under the Senior Loan, for a
principal amount of US$ 110 million plus accrued interest at the redemption date.

In accordance with Law No. 25,063, effective January 1, 1999 interest on negotiable bonds is
subject to a 15% tax on financial indebtedness. Subsequently, Law No. 25,360, published in
the Official Bulletin on December 12, 2000, established a tax rate abatement schedule
starting on January 1, 2001 and end to June 30, 2002, up to the final repeal of this tax on July
1, 2002.

As explained above, on October 31, 2001, the Company benefited from certain exemptions
established by Decree 1054/01 (Note 30), which refer to exemption from tax on interest paid
and tax on corporate indebtedness, established by Law 25.063 as amended.

Because of the Company’s difficult economic situation and the deep economic crisis in
Argentina as indicated in Note 1, after the closing date the Company failed to pay the interest
accrued on negotiable obligations in the amount of US$ 7.9 million, which became due on
February 1, 2002. The Company communicated this non-fulfillment to the regulatory
agencies in due time and also informed Citibank N.A., as trustee, about its intention to
restructure its obligations under the trust agreement in order to reflect Argentina’s present
prospects and the Company’s ability to generate cash flows.
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Note 23: Status of the Financial Debt (Negotiable Bonds and Loan Agreement) (Continued)

Because of the circumstances described above, if the Company fails to remedy the non-
fulfillment within 30 days, the trustee can, through a written notification to the Company, or

the holders of negotiable obligations representing at least 25% of the total principal
amount owed can, or the trustee following a written request by such bondholders must,
declare the lapsing of all the terms established in the trust agreement and, therefore, all the
amounts owed under the trust agreement will become immediately due and payable.

At any time once all the terms have been declared lapsed, as mentioned above, and until the
trustee or any of the bondholders obtain a ruling for the payment of the amounts owed under
the trust agreement, the bondholders representing the majority of the amounts owed, through
a written notification to the trustee and the Company, can revoke such statement and its
consequences, provided (i) the Company pays to, or deposits with, the trustee an amount
which is sufficient to cover the payment of all interest due, unpaid principal (owed for
reasons other than the declaration of lapsing), additional amounts or premiums, if applicable,
which may be due and payable plus interest accrued on those amounts and any expenses
incurred by the trustee, its agents or advisors, and (ii) all other non-fulfillment, if any, is
remedied or waived.

The above does not infringe the bondholders’ individual rights, as they are entitled to file a
summary lawsuit against the Company to claim payment of the principal, interest, and
additional amounts, if any, which may be due and payable under section 29 of the Negotiable
Obligations Law.

b. On July 27, 2000, the Company entered into a new renewable loan agreement called
“Amended and Restated Senior Secured Credit Agreement” for up to US$ 30 million with
Bankers Trust Company (as administrative agent), Deutsche Bank S.A. (as guarantee agent)
and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (as organizing agent).

This loan fully amends and orders the previous agreement dated March 19, 1999 called
“Senior Secured Credit Agreement” for up to US$ 20 million. On July 29, 1999 and January
27, 2000, the funds from this credit line were allocated to the settlement of interest on the
negotiable obligations, which became due on August 1, 1999 and February 1, 2000.

The new loan agreement accrues annual interest payable quarterly at a LIBO rate in line with
clause 1.6 of the agreement. The loan is repayable in seven semi-annual installments as
from August 1, 2001 and ending on May 1, 2004. Early repayments of the loan are allowed
at no additional cost, but must be for a principal amount of at least US$ 5 million.

The proceeds of the loan were used for settling the earlier loan for US$ 20 million, as well as
for settling the interest on the negotiable bonds maturing on August 1, 2000.

Under the terms of the current loan, the Company has extended the security granted under the
earlier agreement in favour of Bankers Trust Company, mentioned in Note 21.

Under the terms of this loan agreement, Compafifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. assumed the
responsibilities detailed below, among others:
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Note 23: Status of the Financial Debt (Negotiable Bonds and Loan Agreement) (Continued)

- Certain restrictions on the distribution of dividends;

- Certain restrictions and limitations to the Company and its subsidiaries’ indebtedness and
the maintaining of ratios of indebtedness to results, and compliance with other economic
and financial ratios;

- Cenain restrictions on the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ capital investments.

At the end of the year, the Company failed to comply with some economic and financial
indicators included in the loan agreement mentioned above, related to minimum EBITDA
levels, consolidated interest rate coverage and consolidated indebtedness level, as well as the
payment of the first two principal installments for US$ 1.5 million and US$ 2 million, which
were due on August 1 and November 1, 2001, respectively.

After the closing date, the Company also failed to comply with the payment of interest on
this loan for US$ 650,389, which was due on February 1, 2002.

Because of the market situation and these selective non-fulfillments, the Company is
renegotiating the due dates for the principal installments of the loan mentioned above. The
Company’s Management expects to satisfactorily conclude renegotiation of the terms of the
loan and obtain the corresponding waiver from Deutsche Bank and Bankers Trust Company
on the understanding that there are no factors that might adversely affect such negotiation. If
the Company does not remedy the present situation or does not reach an agreement, the
administrative agent (Bankers Trust Company "B.T.") can request the early repayment of the
entire loan amount, but this is not yet the case.

The lack of agreement might also affect the original terms for the issue of negotiable
obligations described in paragraph a. of this Note, and the principal owed (US$ 120 million)
may have to be repaid early. :

Note 24: Agreement for the purchase of shares of Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan
de Argentina S.A. - Future commitments

On December 29, 1999, the Company signed a share purchase and sale agreement for 99.9985%
of the corporate capital and votes of Establecimiento Elaborador de Alimentos Sacaan de Argentina S.A., a
deal which was to be closed subject to the compliance with certain conditions set out in the agreement.

On March 6, 2002, the parties agreed to close the purchase of 99.9985% of the corporate capital
and votes of the company mentioned above by the Company, effective as from December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2001, the amount of advances to the seller totaled US$ 10.8 million. The
balance of the price for this acquisition is approximately US$ 5.5 million, which has been capitalized as
part of the final purchase price.

As this year the Company continued to suffer the effects of the deep economic recession

mentioned in Note 1, it decided to write down the investment made in this company by $ 7,749,072 and set
up an allowance of § 2,910,858 for the balances due from it.
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Note 25: Acquisition of Capital Foods S.A.

On December 7, 1999 the Company entered into a share purchase agreement to acquire 100% of
the capital stock and votes of Capital Foods S.A., which operates in the “home-made” bakery and
confectionery business under the “Antojos” brand.

In March 2000, this transaction was closed when it was approved by the National Court for the
Defense of Competition, under Law No. 25,156 dated February 25, 2000. The purchase price for this
transaction was US$ 2,820,000 (net of expenses), which was settied in five payments, made on December 7
and 24, 1999, and on January 4, June 7 and December 12, 2000.

On March 8, 2000, the Board of Directors of Capital Foods S.A. approved the transfer of 11,999
shares with a face value of Ps. 1 each and one voting right per share in favor of Compaiiia de Alimentos
Fargo S.A., and 1 share with a face value of Ps. 1 and one voting right in favor of a third party.

Note 26: Agreement covering the assignment of brands and manufacturing services
a. Panificacién Argentina S.A.I.C,

On December 28, 1999 the Company entered into an agreement with Panificacién Argentina
S.AILC,, to take effect on January 1, 2000, under which the latter transferred the use of its brands,
isotypes, logotypes, designs and marketing images to the Company and as a counterpart the
Company undertakes to pay it royalties at a given percentage of the net sales of the products
marketed under the Panificacién Argentina S.AIC. brands.

Furthermore, Panificacién Argentina S.A.1.C. manufactures foodstuffs at the requirement of
the Company for subsequent marketing, and in this respect charges Compafiia de Alimentos
Fargo S.A. a fee.

b. Capital Foods S.A. -

On July 31, 2001, an amendment was made to the agreement signed with Capital Foods S.A.
on November 10, 2000, under which the latter authorized the Company to market certain
products manufactured by it under the “Antojos” brand, for which the Company must pay a
royalty which is calculated as a percentage of the net sales of the products sold under the
brand owned by Capital Foods S.A.

c. Fresh Food S.A.

On July 31, 2001, an amendment was made to the agreement signed with Fresh Food S.A.
on June 1, 2001, under which the former shall manufacture and market its subsidiary’s
products, under the “Fresh Food” trademark. The Company will pay a commission on the net sales
of the products marketed under such trademark.

Note 27: Irrevocable contributions on account of future issues of shares in subsidiary companies

a. On March 28, 2001 the Company’s Board of Directors approved the capitalization in favour
of Capital Foods S.A. (subsidiary company) part of the debts which it owed the Company
for Ps. 100,000. This capitalization was instrumented as irrevocable capital contributions on
account of future share issues and has contributed significantly towards improving the
financial position of this subsidiary.
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Note 27: Irrevocable contributions on account of future issues of shares in subsidiary companies
(Continued)

b. On April 26 and December 27, 2001, the Company made irrevocable capital contributions in
Fresh Food S.A. (a subsidiary) on account of future share subscriptions for $ 110,000 and $
200,000, respectively, to prevent the latter from being encompassed by the provisions of
article 206 of the Commercial Companies Law No. 19,550, pursuant to which it would be
forced into a capital reduction.

c. On June 27, 2001, the Board of Directors of Compaifiia de Alimentos Fargo S.A. approved
the transformation of certain receivables that the Company had with Enicor S.A. into
irrevocable capital contributions for US$ 1,000,000 on account of future issuances of shares.

Note 28: Acquisition of Fresh Food S.A.

On November 17, 2000, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement involving
100% of the shares and votes of Fresh Food S.A., a company dedicated to manufacturing sandwiches.

On March 30, 2001, the Company consummated the transaction as a result of the approval
granted by the CNDC on February 26, 2001 in accordance with Law No. 25,156. The final purchase price
amounted to US$ 192,000, payable in 24 installments monthly and consecutive basis. At December 31,
2001, the amount owed by the Company is US$ 104,000.

Note 29: Mandatory reduction of the corporate capital

At December 31, 2001, the Company’s accumulated losses absorb the reserves and 50% of its
corporate capital. This situation is governed by article 206 of Law No. 19,550, which provides for the
mandatory reduction of the corporate capital.

Therefore, the Company’s shareholders will have to take the necessary action in order to
overcome the situation mentioned above.

Note 30: Benefit from certain exemptions established by Decree 1054/01

On October 31, 2001, the Official Gazette included the Company as beneficiary of the
exemptions granted under Decree No. 1054/01, issued by the Executive Branch on August 22, 2001. These
benefits are in force as from the day following publication.

The Decree grants tax benefits to certain economic activities in order to improve their
competitiveness and job-generation possibilities. The Decree provides that individuals or entities carrying
out certain economic activities, as listed therein, will be entitled to the following benefits:

a. Exemption from Tax on Interest Paid and on Corporate Indebtedness established by Law No.
25,063, as amended.

b. Consideration of the value of the assets used in the economic activity carried out in Argentina and
encompassed by the Decree, as non computable for purposes of the Tax on Minimum Notional
Income established by Law No. 25,063, as amended.

c. Consideration as input value added tax of employer contributions accrued during the fiscal year
and actually deposited at the time of filing the corresponding tax return.

Subsequently, Decree No.1676 published in the Official Gazette on December 20, 2001 suspended the
application of point ¢) above until March 31, 2003.
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Note 31: Significant events

Considering that the market recession mentioned in Note 1 has continued to impact the
Company’s sales during the current year and, therefore, its operating results, the Company’s Board is re-
defining a strategic business plan, which encompasses a financial and operating restructuring.

Based on the above, the Company decided to re-assign resources in various areas and terminate

around 100 employees. This decision would generate an actual cost of approximately $ 1 million, which is
covered by an allowance this year.

63




9

D s(npayag 33§ (¢
“H ANPAIS Uy umous (1)

BOLTSE LS - TE1esTLE PSLOCH'S (Svz'o9p 0 {soe 189’1 LT6'T96'1E 626’0116 @6y 120°T) - (60LSED) WE'IERy  685°159'06 * Q00T ‘1E J3qUWadag J0 S8 [B)0],
N €ESL8Y 6p PS66ET SP OIS ¥orLy [GTEE) TE1¢ST LE (8Y1TL V6 SLY8Y - {L16'LE6) 008 11SY 626100 16 -~ 1007 * 1€ 13GU23aQ 0 St [Bl0),
1£9°€L1 956'SOT - - - - - 956'507 - (12’691 - 965'L61 1£9°EL1 (2) s1a11ddns 01 sasueapy
880126 (24412 - - - - - epySOL - Qrmen - 1£0'981'1 BRO°126 ssagosd uy yropm
(3% 41 JSLEN |rovt 8E8PT - - ols 1zl 660097 - - - - 660097 sued aredg
SSL'OL6'T 00 THL'ESTL L56'88C°1 - {661611) YOO P09 PE'LLTO1 - £0S°96€ (89L°121) 09€°800°1 65L'v66'8 * sasE) put suuo)eld ‘soureod ‘sken ansejd ‘Splopw
LETIST 68V°0L 8Y6°L6L°1 6p's01 - (681'059) SBITPE'T LLY'898'E - - (Sv'see) - TTO'E6S'T SIAMYIA
6LELIE’S 9LIIIT'( P86'608 1 LLIGHT - {2650} 663°1LS") 099'920°t - 01ey €21y SO¥'8Y BLT'6E6'T samxy pue anpung
LSL'PES'S TS SW'S 0£T'808°t 8RE'CSST - - YRTSE't SL'EES'8 - ITrLT - ove'ILL 665°L8Y"L AEMYOS
QLT 1E0 [RIN7A €09°LZ1°1 868'89¢ - - SOL'8SL 9RLILE'T - - - S08'18S 186'68L°1 dwo)
LE6'BOO'S 965°0LY'Y 9T'6L8'Y P6E'668 - szy) 66S'086'€ Y98'6PE'6 - £6L'9S (v62'7) 618°51T 9ES6LO'6 sampaed
SITLLYIT PIEPIES] 81 1LE1L L6Y'LTR'E PoL'LY (8€9°PL) SO6'0LS'LY 0989 6L SLY'RY 19¥°788 (S42°'r8) 1L'16 0Z)'8P0°6E dinba pue A1ouyaepy
E9'TPL01 K09°068°01 13239791 199°9Lt - - T86'RIR'T 1STETY1 - SI6'EIS - €TL'ONL £19°11Y'el ping
£0E'S0T P £0E°S0T'Y - - - - - £0€°S0TY - - - - €OE's0T'Y pue
(sosag) (s0sa4) (Sosag) (sosaq) (s0sayg) (sosag) (sosaq) (sosag) (s0saq) (s0s34) (s0s3q) (sosay) (sosaq) TGS (HUDuR g
0007 1007 1Bak Ayl Jo [{4] SUOREIISTEION SN 188 ) agaf SUOHEIISSERY SIJSuBay, SISEAIIN( SUCHIpPY avak g
‘1€ 13quIdA ‘1€ Jaquidaq 483k ay) 1oy Jo Bunnndaq ayy A jo pud Jo Buputdaq
JO 5B 3njeA JO 58 aneA pHa Ay 1w 18 PAYOWNDY g W IN[BA v
Sujdrred 13N dulner N . paepnunsay
vonepadag A BuBuQ
V 3NPayds§

1ou ‘quewdinba pue jue|d ‘f11adoag pajyepijosuodun)
0007 PU® [00Z ‘1€ JIqUII(| PIPU? S18A 104
V'S 098VA SOLNIINI'TY 3d VINVAINOD




$9

“H 2[0pIYdS U1 6HOPIR'PT "Sd PUE (9] 2ION) 19U ‘SHOSDI |BLOURUL] Uy PIPOIOUL 218 O86'HUS"L S ()

SANS2S AIRUIPIOBING W TLO'6GPL'L S PUB ' AINP3YIS UF THY'ZLS'TZ S (91 JI0N) 19U 'SIASAL [mauruly ul PapRIouI 18 £08°ISE° 1 'sd (1)

00DT ‘1§ 3qUINQ JO SE B0

100Z *I€ $3quIaa(] Jo S8 {8101,

+ee 53suUadxa s199foud mau Jo yuawdojasap pue uoneziuedioay

........ e spuoq agenodau Jo uonensiSas pue aouenss) -a1 sasuadxy

sasuadxa Juisnsapy

SyIBwapeLy,

SURO| YuRg a1 s9suadX3 PUB §39.

{impoory

JUNoue [eduIlg

12066 8p1 = ROPLELCY GOEED] D) 6IPEOL TROECL 161 Ve 8IL $R5 9169 TR0 VR
N RS IOBF 6T SErO0rbL 96T9IE (D RoveeLTh TZ0L68E0L - SEEE1TI TROLCL 161
£68'9€8'1 - £R9°LE9 899'L98'€ SI0'808° £49'SLED i sLLoeue 8U6vPEY
R00'EER'S 0T8'E90'S 66L°SES'T 881°69L 1199921 619'665'L . i 619°665°L
- - wrvse - LYI0EL LY I0SL ) ) Lrroel
068°€ 1 - 000001 068°€1 otreg o001 ; ; 000001
997°€20°T 0I1LPl 1660669 S19°788 ILLLOVS wr19v's ; 0sv'oe tiiers
85 1'E8C'6E1 $99° 18622 SIPPLYLS 200°6£5°9¢ CORVETIE 080'929'081 ) 180101 LweLisolt
(so0say) (s0sag) (sosaq) (sosag) (sosaq) (s0saq) (s0534) (sosaq) (sosag)
(171174 1062 agak J824 31y 0] 1834 Y1 jo 1824 3y SUOLIBAUJISSBLINY SHONMPPY aeak gy
‘§§ 13QWIA( ‘4 JaquIadaQ ays jo pua ayy jo FuiumBaq ap J0 pud 3y} jo sy 30 dunngdaq
10 5B anBA 40 SB anjeA SB PARINWNIIY 18 pAEINWNIIY gy
duikared yaN duifaaed PN
uopezHIOWY anjep jpuidliQ
4 2npayds

19U s1ISSY IqIueiu] pIJepPIOSuUcIU)
000Z PUR 0T ‘1€ IIQUIIDI(] PIPUD SIBIA Y} J0]
V'S 0DUVA SOLNHAI'TY Hd VINVAINOD




99

'96G'gT8'L § AQ 1uwNsaAUI a1y} J0 dnjeA 2y FuISEIOUT 2104233y *AIRIPISGNS Y1 J0 SAN[IGRI] PUE SIISSE G JO INJRA JWIUND Y} O UIAIT SEM UOHEIIPISUOD “TUIWISIAU SIy) JO 3nje ay) Sunernajed u) (5)

"§Z 910U 238 "%§ 1 00°0 1 $3u0jaq A1 KIIOUIL (L (p)

100Z ‘1€ 12qwadaq Yy$noay) (00T *§ yIepy wol) ‘potsad yiuow Of € 10} sYnsay % Ep00'0 08 $3u0aq Isatau Aiounn Ay ()
" ER00°0 01 53U 0[aq 1sa1ams Ansounu L, ()

IS [ JO YGEON00 01 fenha ted & 01 sTUo1aq 1sarmn Antounu yg (1)

0907C€991 54 PEGPEOOI sd teol
swapad A1aysq jo
Suipen pue Suumaegnueiy PSTOLO'01 S - sd - - - - SIITIPLSQS J0 a5EYIING AY) 10§ SIIUTAPY
LYY
BHEROG66 (1) (6TH°618°P) - 000"00L 5] v'g eupuatiy
spnpoad £133eq JO - LIT'LO6'T sd - 666'69 01 KmwpiQ 3p URRIRG SOWAWI]Y IP JOPEIOGRIY CIUAUEINQBISY
Suipen pue Juundenuepy 'sd
spnpad K5ayeq Jo - £61972 sd - 666'12€ 1 A V'S POOd 4saxd
%L666'66 (£} LEV'POT @'y 000°TTe Juipex; pue Suumoznuep 'Sd
spnpord L19yeq | (sofendnin
%001 £€6L°619 (991°pPL) £88°07 Jo Gupen pue vodwp 8695 sd 814192 5d - [11 040 50sad) N§IW AmupiQ N0Y) V'S ooy
swnpord £1axeq jo
Bmpeny pue Suunoejnuew
bL166'66 (7) NN €iv'16) 000°T1 “Suisigove jo Juuey  Ogsgl Sd PS8'YE sd - 66611 1 Amupio “y°s spood fende))
snposrt £1axeq jo
%6606 66 (1) Q0L 00v'Y 0r'oLl 108°v66'T Supen pue Funape)nuew 862 P9 sS4 T86'PISY sd - 108'66'T 1 Arurpo V'S Bunuadly upenjiued
08561 M8 £¢ "My Smedwo)
SHUAULISIALY JUALINI-TON
S310A Tijnby Goe 1075 TiAnoE edipuig GO0T 1€ Jaquiadaq 1007 "1t 33quIdRQ 2N{BA JNIEIL SIIBYS MuA iy Sanpndas 3ij) Jo
30 9Bvuaniay (SIIDIOIIBYS 71010710} UOIUO)) JO SH INBA Hooq JOsB anjea yooq pajond) JO aaquuny SISHANIRIBLY) PUE JINSS]
1834
U} Joj SYnsay
(1002 0t 1quidRg [ETEIE RGO )

JO SB SJURUIIE)IS JBRUBAY JSE]) JINSSE ) JO UONEULIOjU]
J AnpaYydg

satueduwo)) 19410 Ul 3Sa13UI IBYS

0007 PUR JOOT ‘T€ JIQUIdI(T PIPUD SILIA ) 0]
V'S ODUAVA SOLNTITY dd VINVAINOD




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
Unconsolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2001 and 2000

Other Investments
Schedule D
Net book value as of Net book value as of
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000
Principal account and characteristics (Pesos) (Pesos)
Current
Time Deposits Ps. ...c.ociciiiiciiiiit et et e - 759,071
Mutval Fand in PS.......vovvocoeceverreonesnsevcerserns et - 1,049,168
Total Current Other InvestInents .............c.ccoeeeeeeeereniercercorieseneens - 2,708,239
Non-Current
Properties - Net Carrying vVallle ..ot 153,534 156,174
Total Non-Current Other Investments...............cccconvurenerecinmnirecnnen 153,534 156,174
TOLAL ..ot ettt are st e e n e e ekttt er e 153,534 2,864,413
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
Unconsolidated Provisions

Jrems
Deducted from assets

Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 24)

Obsolescence / SIoW MOVING FESEIVE ....ovvviverieivacirerinnennens

Allowance for assets tax

Total deducted from assets ............coooeeevvnniniireninnces

Inciuded under non-current liabilities

Provisions for lawsuits

Total included under non-current liabilities ..................
Total as of Decemtber 31, 2001 ......c.c..omrcnneccrirmraconnen

Total as of December 31, 2000

(1)  Ps.$2,910,858 are included in “Extraordinary Results” and Ps. $ 1,894,902 in Schedule H.

(2) Sown in Schedule H.

2.893.403

Schedule E.
Value at the Balance as of Balance as of
beginning Additions Ded December 31, December 31,
of the year for the year for the year 2001 2000
{Pesos) {Pesos) {Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
2,166,190 [¢Y) 4.805,760 (111.536) 6,860,414 2,166,190
54,877 - (54.877) - 54,877
- 4,657.942 - 4,657,942 -
2.221,067 9.463.702 (166.413) 11,518,356 2,221,067
1,274,321 388,051 (222.648) 1,439,724 1.274.321
1,274,321 3] 388,051 (222.648) 1.439.724 1,274,321
3,495.388 9.851,753 (389.061) 12.958.080 -
904.011 (302.026) - 3.495.388
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
Unconsolidated Cost of sales

Schedule F.
December 31, December 31,
2001 2000
(Pesos) (Pesos)

Inventory balance at the beginning of the Year.......cvviiimiimiii i e vesseensns 3,434,190 3,781,206
Plus:
Purchases for the Year ........cccccorrvovvecrrveessessssermeesesssesen e e 36,076,118 38,868,946
Production expenses (Schedule H) 34,365,811 31,643,863
Less:
Inventory balance at the end of the Year (NOE 7)...cocirireerecnmiiirncrcnieoniiereereesereanssaseresenene (2,872,948) (3,434,190)
COSE OF SALLS ........covoeiieeiveiteeeeieissae bt ere e e e s e et e s seanerese s et essensaneeensobsannsesee e sennabasssnserans 71,003,171 70,859,825
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COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
Unconsolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2601 and 2000
Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilities

ASSETS

Current Assets

Accounts receivable ..
Other receivables ...........oveioemivinieniiieinnns

Total CoITent ASSelS..........coovmemrrcrrmiurirees

Non-Current Assets

Orher receivables .............

Advances to suppliers (purchase of property,

plant and equipment).

Total Non-Current Assets............cccomvererinene

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
ACCOUnNLS PAYABI& ... e

Short-term debl ...

Other liabilities ...cco.oivmcniinnne

Total Current Liabilities.............cccccooonnen.

Non-Current Liabilities

Accounts payable.... ..o

Long-termdebl .......coeinreeiinire s

Totat Non-Current Liabilities...

Total Liabilities............couviiienenrincnns

(1) Official exchange rate at December 31, 2001, in accordance with Resolution N° 392 of the National Securities Commission.

Schedule G
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000

Current Ameunt in local Current Amount in local

Type and amount of exchange CUITency Type and amount of exchange currency

foreign currency rate (1) (Pesos) foreign currency rate (2) (Pesos)
Uss 42957 1 42957 uss 202.599 1 202.599
Uss 1,833,494 1 1,833,494 uss 1,960,790 i 1,960,790
Uss 72,571 1 72,571 Uss 1,664,404 1 1.664.404
1,949,022 3,827,793
Uss 8,670 1 8,670 Uss 18,670 1 18,670
Uss 99,583 1 99,583 uss 105.373 1 105,373
108,253 124,043
2,057,278 3951.836
uUss 1,539,684 1 1,539,684 uss 862.758 1 862,758
Uss 19,057,233 1 19.057,233 Uss 12.776.458 11 12,776,458

uss 2.259.836 1 2.259.836 uUss -

22,856,753 13,639.216
Uss - 1 - Uss 356,627 1 356.627
uss 138,000,000 1 138,000.000 Uss 146,500,000 1 146,500,000
138.000.000 146.856.627
160.856.753 160,495.843

(2) Official exchange rate prevailing at December 31, 2000.




COMPANIA DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.
Unconsolidated Information required under Art. 64, clause (b) of Law 19,550
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

Schedule H.
Total as of General and Total as of
December 31, Production Administrative Selling December 31,
2001 Cost Expenses Expenses 2000

Item (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos) (Pesos)
Fees and payments for SEIVICES .......oocviencerrrerinnnes 12,422,716 7,880,605 2,731,682 1,810,429 11,366,781
Salaries and WAZES ....ccevevererrirceeremrnisnnene e 23,723,708 11,195,135 4,192,577 8,335,996 22,810,298
Social security CORtriBULONS ......comivrirencicriencirceenne 3,896,046 1,903,476 631,705 1,360,865 4,118,006
Travel and other employee expenses. 2,293,751 818,602 481,779 993,370 2,002,286
Freight and transportation ..........cceverivnvierivnreninnenn, 10,198,062 34,909 - 10,163,153 9,457,661
Advertising and promotion.............cooveeeiivcinrinnnnien, 13,520,598 - - 13,520,598 10,200,606
INSULANCE ..cevecncrcicrrr ettt 292,190 74,247 82,874 135,069 356,747
Import and eXport XPenSES.......cuuvimerivensrerissennens 208,756 5,567 - 203,189 257,361
Security SEIVICES 1orvr v eeeessseer oo seese e 651,397 367,505 54,896 228,996 635,034
Electricity, fuel, maintenance and repairs .................. 5,087,358 3,578,176 628,781 880,401 4,868,665
Taxes and conuibutions .......cco.cceemenirvrecnnrscninonnn 2,736,206 1,039,087 700,400 996,719 2,256,103
Depreciation of fixed assets .......coococvivircercrninnene. 8,787,802 5,920,713 1,159,159 1,707,930 8,430,754
Amortization of intangible assets ... 22,572,092 138,715 20,389,243 2,044,134 14,864,049
Depreciation of other assets ............iocrivirnienrinee. 113,602 - - 113,602 L 77464
Defaulting debtors ..o 1,894,902 - - 1,894,902 629,953
LLAWSUILS -.ovvmecr oo e s s st st siasi s e 388,051 251,750 29,407 106,894 270,667
LEASES 1.ttt e 1,235,592 376,752 148,605 710,235 1,468,358
OThET cuiiieeiee ettt ees ettt 1,571,031 780,572 390,214 400,245 807,454
Total as of December 31, 2001 ........c..ccccovvrvniniinnn, 111,593,860 34,365,811 31,621,322 45,606,727 -
Total as of December 31,2000...............ccccoovemnnnne. - 31,643,863 25,523,904 37,710,480 94,878,247
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(Free translation of the report issued for Argentine
purposes in accordance with local generally accepted
accounting principles)

AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the President and Directors of
Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A.

1. We have audited the balance sheets of Compaiiia de Alimentos Fargo S.A. as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, as well as the statements of income, of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash
flows for the years then ended, together with the corresponding notes 1 through 31, schedules A to
H. We have also examined the consolidated financial statements of Compaiiia de Alimentos Fargo
S.A with its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, as well as the consolidated statements
of income and consolidated cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, together
with notes 1 through 21 and consolidated schedules A through H, and the Consolidated Summary
of Activities, which are submitted as supplementary information. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Argentina.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. In accordance with Resolution 1/02 of the Professional Council in Economic Sciences of the
Autonomous City of Buenos Aires and Resolution No. 392 of the National Securities Commission,
Resolution 2/02 of the Superintendency of Corporations, as of December 31, 2001 assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were valued at the exchange rate of $ 1 per US$ 1 or
its equivalent in any other foreign currency. Note 1 details conditions prevailing in Argentine
exchange markets at the end of the year and the economic measures issued by the Government to
confront the national crisis, some of which may not have been announced at the date of issuance of
these financial statements. The impact generated by measures adopted to date by the Government
on the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2001, detailed in Note 1, was
calculated on the basis of management’s current assessments. Actual results could differ from
current management assessments and such differences could be material. Therefore, the
Company’s financial statements may not inform all adjustments that might ultimately result from




these adverse conditions. Future economic developments and related effects on the Company’s
financial position cannot presently be determined. Therefore, the Company’s financial statements
should be read in the light of these circumstances.

As mentioned in Notes 1 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, because of the market
recession and the Company’s financial condition, it continued to incur significant losses which
have affected its net worth and deteriorated its economic indicators. For these reasons the
Company was unable to comply with: a) certain principal and interest due dates and other
conditions undertaken under a Financial Loan agreement for US$ 30 million (for which Bankers
Trust Company acts as administrative agent and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. as organizing
agent); b) the payment of interest accrued on Negotiable Obligations in the amount of US$ 7.9
million, which became due on February 1, 2002 ; and c) certain economic and financial indicators
required by the terms of both the Financial Loan and the Negotiable Obligations. Should the
Company fail to correct the situations described, these creditors will be entitled to consider that all
established maturity terms have lapsed, demanding accelerated payment of these loans, a situation
that has not yet arisen.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
that assume that the Company will continue as a going concern, especially although not
exclusively in relation to the valuation of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets. The Company
incurred a net loss of $§ 58,169,329 in the year ended 2001, and recorded a working capital
deficiency from operations of $ 28,943,127; accumulated losses total § 118,743,367 as of
December 31, 2001. All of these matters raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to
the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of
liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern,
being obliged to realize its assets and settle its liabilities, including those of a contingent nature, in
conditions other than those of the normal course of business. For the above reasons, in order to
continue to do business normally, the Company will have to: 1) renegotiate the principal and
interest maturities and terms of the financial loans it failed to comply with on the basis of its
effective repayment possibilities, preventing the original due dates, based on which these financial
statements have been prepared, from lapsing and becoming due and payable forthwith; and 2)
continue to take steps to overcome the loss situation and/or request new capital contributions to be
able to obtain the necessary funds to comply with all its liabilities and commitments undertaken,
and be able to absorb or recover its fixed asset depreciation and the amortization of goodwill and
other items capitalized in Intangibles.

As mentioned in Note 29 to the financial statements, the Company is encompassed by the
provisions of article 206 of the Commercial Companies Law No. 19,550, which provides for the
mandatory reduction of capital when accumulated losses account for the reserves plus 50% of the
corporate capital.




7. The accompanying financial statements of Compania de Alimentos Fargo S.A. at December 31,
2001 are presented on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Argentina, which
may differ from the accounting principles generally accepted in jurisdictions -other than Argentina-
where those financial statements are to be used.

8 In our opinion, subject to the effect on the financial statements of the adjustments and
reclassifications, if any, that might result from the situations described in paragraphs 3, 4, 5 and 6,
in order to continue to do business normally of the Company:

a) the financial statements of Compafiia de Alimentos Fargo S.A. present fairly, in all material
respects, its financial position at December 31, 2001 and 2000, the results of its operations, the
changes in its shareholders' equity and the statements of cash flows for the years then ended, in
conformity with professional accounting standards in force in Argentina.

b) the consolidated financial statements of Compaiifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. with its subsidiary
present fairly, in all material respects, its consolidated financial position at December 31, 2001
and 2000, the consolidated results of its operations and the consolidated statements of cash
flows for the years then ended, in conformity with professional accounting standards in force in
Argentina.

9. In accordance with current regulations we report that:

a) The financial statements mentioned in 1. have been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of Laws Nos. 19,550 and 22,903 and Resolution No. 368/01 of the National Securities
Commission.

b) We have read the Consolidated Summary of Activities and we have no comments to make on
matters within our field of competence.

¢) At December 31, 2001, the liabilities accrued by Compafifa de Alimentos Fargo S.A. in
respect of employer contributions and employee withholdings towards the Integrated Pension
and Survivors' Benefit System according to the accounting records and returns by the
Company, amounted to $ 524.252, which were not due at that date.

Buenos Aires, March 8, 2002

PRICE WATERHOUSE & CO.

by (Partner)
CPCECABA.T°1FP1RAPU.
Dr. Ruben Osvaldo Mosi
Public Accountant (U.B.A.)
CPCECABA T°68-F 134
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securitics and Exchange Act ol 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report 10 be signed on its behaltf by the undersigned, thercunto duly authorized, in the

- City of Buenos Aires, Argentina.

1
COMPAN/A DE ALIMENTOS FARGO S.A.

By: /MLM

Name: D ngel Elizalde

Title: ef Financial Officer

PANIFIC }CION ARGENTINA S.A.
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Name—Damel-E}wa{
Title; - ﬁ:hief Financial Ofﬁcer
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Tltle Ko /ef Financial Ofﬂcer
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